
School Board of Clay County
Teacher Inservice Center, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island, FL  32043

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Date: Mar 02 2023 (6:00 p.m.)

Student Showcase (S. Bryan Jennings Chorus, Daniel Johns, Music Teacher)

Invocation (Pastor Matt Owen, Community Bible Church of Orange Park)

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order

Recognitions and Awards

1. Recognize Spelling Bee Winner(s)

2. Recognize State and International Science Fair Nominees

Presenters

School Showcase (S. Bryan Jennings, Elise Taylor, Principal)

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment)

Consent Agenda

Superintendent

3. C1 - Minutes of School Board Workshop on January 24, 2023; Student Discipline Hearings and Regular Meeting on
February 2, 2023

2023 Jan 24 Workshop.pdf

2023 Feb 2 - Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2022 Feb 2 Regular Mtg.pdf

4. C2 - Approval of the Revised 9 Month Employee Work Calendar

Calendar - Employee Work  - 2023-2024 (2).pdf

5. C3 - Proclamation #23-09, Clay County Agricultural Fair

Proclamation 23-09 2023 Clay County Fair.pdf

Information Technology Services

6. C4 - ENA WAN Contract Amendment to add Spring Park Elementary

Human Resources

Page 1 of 248

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52091
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52090
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52015
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52015
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-jan-24-workshop.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2022-feb-2-regular-mtg.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52088
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/calendar-employee-work-2023-2024-2.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52017
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/proclamation-23-09-2023-clay-county-fair.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52071


7. C5 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Personnel Consent Agenda 3.2.2023.pdf

Instruction-Academic Services

8. C6 -  Summer Programs Manual

March 2023 - 2023 Clay County Summer Programs Manual.pdf

9. C7 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

March 2023 Student Travel.pdf

Instruction-Climate and Culture

10. C8 - Proclamation #23-10 to Establish School Social Work Week

Proclamation #23-10_School Social Work Week.pdf

Business Affairs

11. C9 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2022-2023

22 23 Allocation Summary - Mar 2, 2023.pdf

Business Affairs-Accounting

12. C10 - Monthly Financial Reports for January, 2023

January 2023 Monthly Board Financial Report.pdf

January 2023 Monthly Board Property Report.pdf

Contracts $50,000-$100,000 Signed by Superintendent.pdf

13. C11 - Budget Amendment Report for January 31, 2023

Budget Amendment January 2022.pdf

Business Affairs-Payroll

14. C12 - Approval of the 2023-2024 Payroll Calendars

23-24 Calendar - 9 Month Employees ALL.pdf

23-24 Calendar - 10 Mo 196 & 197 Day Employees.pdf

23-24 Calendar - 11 Month 216 Day Employees.pdf

23-24 Calendar - 12 month 260 Day Employees.pdf

23-24 Payroll Master Calendar Dates.pdf

23-24 Payroll Employee Work Days.pdf

2023 Summer Payroll Calendar.pdf

Business Affairs-Property

15. C13 - DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT FEBRUARY, 2023

DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT FEBRUARY, 2023.pdf

Business Affairs-Purchasing

Page 2 of 248

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52072
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda-322023.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52078
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/march-2023-2023-clay-county-summer-programs-manual_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52080
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/march-2023-student-travel.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52057
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/proclamation-23-10_school-social-work-week.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52053
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/22-23-allocation-summary-mar-2-2023_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52077
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/january-2023-monthly-board-financial-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/january-2023-monthly-board-property-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contracts-50000-100000-signed-by-superintendent_2.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52079
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/budget-amendment-january-2022_2.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52081
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/23-24-calendar-9-month-employees-all.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/23-24-calendar-10-mo-196-197-day-employees.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/23-24-calendar-11-month-216-day-employees.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/23-24-calendar-12-month-260-day-employees.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/23-24-payroll-master-calendar-dates.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/23-24-payroll-employee-work-days.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-summer-payroll-calendar.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52056
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-of-certain-items-report-february-2023.pdf


16. C14 - BID to be Awarded

Operations-Facilities

17. C15 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Lakeside Junior High School
Restroom Renovations Buildings 1, 2, & 3

18. C16 - Pre-Qualification of Contractors

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 3.2.23.pdf

19. C17 - Change Order #2 (Direct Purchasing) for Spring Park Elementary School

Change Order #2 (Direct Purchasing) for Spring Park Elementary School.pdf

20. C18 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Montclair Elementary School
Electrical Panel Replacement

21. C19 - Annual Florida Inventory of School Houses (FISH) Certification

FISH Certification 2023 (2).pdf

22. C20 - Substantial and Final Completion of Orange Park High School Front Entrance Security Enhancements

OPH Front Entrance Security Substantial & Final Completion.pdf

23. C21 - Middleburg High School Safety & Security Single Key Access Initiative Contract Award

MHS Single Key Access Bid Tab.pdf

MHS Safety & Security Single Key Access Contract.pdf

24. C22 - Change Order #5 for Orange Park High School Front Entrance Security Enhancement

OPH Front Entrance Security CO #5.pdf

25. C23 - Keystone Heights High School Safety & Security Single Key Access Initiative  Contract Award

KHH Single Key Access Contract Award.pdf

26. C24 - Orange Park Junior High School Restroom Renovations (Building 1) Contract Award

OPJ Restroom Renovation Contract.pdf

27. C25 - Change Order #2 for Clay High School Restroom Renovations

CHS Restroom Renovation CO #2.pdf

Adoption of Consent Agenda

CCEA Update  (Victoria Kidwell)

CESPA Update  (Lonnie Roberts)

Superintendent's Update and Presentations

Discussion Agenda

Human Resources

28. D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

Special Action A - 3.2.2023 (Confidential).pdf (Confidential)

Page 3 of 248

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52076
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52043
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52043
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52061
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-3223.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52062
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-2-direct-purchasing-for-spring-park-elementary-school_1.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52063
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52063
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52066
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/fish-certification-2023-2.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52067
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/oph-front-entrance-security-substantial-final-completion.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52068
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/mhs-single-key-access-bid-tab.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/mhs-safety-security-single-key-access-contract.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52069
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/oph-front-entrance-security-co-5.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52070
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/khh-single-key-access-contract-award.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52082
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/opj-restroom-renovation-contract.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52083
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/chs-restroom-renovation-co-2.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52073


29. D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

Business Affairs

30. D3 - Proposed Allocations for 2023-2024

School Board Attorney Remarks

School Board Member Remarks

Adjournment

Page 4 of 248

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52074
http://agenda.oneclay.net/agendaitem/publishagendaitem?agendaitemid=52085


School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognize Spelling Bee Winner(s)

Description

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Recognition only.

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 5 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
Recognize State and International Science Fair Nominees

Description

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact
Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant, bonnie.onora@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 6 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C1 - Minutes of School Board Workshop on January 24, 2023; Student Discipline Hearings and Regular Meeting on February 2,
2023

Description
Florida Statute 1001.42(1) requires the superintendent, as secretary, to keep such minutes and records as are necessary to set
forth clearly all actions and proceedings of the school board.  The minutes of each meeting shall be reviewed, corrected if
necessary, and approved at the next regular meeting; provided that this action may be taken at an intervening special meeting if
the board desires.

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation
Approve minutes as submitted.

Contact
David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools, david.broskie@myoneclay.net; Bonnie O'Nora, Board Assistant

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

2023 Jan 24 Workshop.pdf

2023 Feb 2 - Student Hearings.pdf (Confidential)

2022 Feb 2 Regular Mtg.pdf

Page 7 of 248

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-jan-24-workshop.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2022-feb-2-regular-mtg.pdf


Date: Jan 24 2023 (9:00 a.m.)

School Board of Clay County

District Multi-Purpose Center, Corner of Walnut Street and Gratio Place, Green Cove Springs, FL

January 24, 2023 - School Board Workshop

Invocation  (Ashley Gilhousen)

Call to Order  (Present: Erin Skipper, District 1; Mary Bolla, District 2; Ashley Gilhousen, District 5; and Superintendent David S.

Broskie. Not present: Beth Clark, District 3; Michele Hanson, District 4.)

Workshop Items

1. Review Draft Agenda for Regular School Board Meeting on February 2, 2023

February-2-2023-school-board-regular-meeting_agenda_packet.pdf

Minutes:

Recognitions and Presentations

Recognition of Fleming Island High, Oakleaf High, and Orange Park High Marching Bands Achievement at State

Competition - no discussion;

Recognize Fleming Island Elementary as a Purple Star School of Distinction - no discussion;

Recognize Student Selected to Participate in the 2023 United States Senate Youth Program - no discussion;

Recognition of 2022-2023 School-Related Employee of the Year and Teacher of the Year - no discussion;

Clay Education Foundation Update - no discussion;

Career and Technical Education Presentation - no discussion;

Consent Agenda

C1 Minutes of School Board Special Meeting and School Board Workshop on December 20, 2022; Student Discipline

Hearings and Regular Meeting on January 5, 2023 - no discussion;

C2 Personnel Consent Agenda - Superintendent Broskie noted revisions to job descriptions as well as the addition of

new job descriptions, and he reviewed the process and timeline for the 2023/2024 appointment of personnel;

C3 Proclamation #23-06 to Establish February 2023 as Black History Month in Clay County Public Schools - Mr. Broskie

noted some of the activities done within the schools to recognize the accomplishments of African Americans within

society;

C4 K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel - no discussion;

C5 Proclamation #23-07 for Career and Technical Education Month - Mr. Broskie noted that 11,000 students are

currently enrolled in one of the four pathways available to all students; Mrs. Bolla encouraged board members to accept

any invitations to judge events; Mrs. Gilhousen noted a conference held last year with economic planners and inquired

about the reevaluation of programs and potential additions of new programs based on the industry; Mr. Broskie noted

the release of data from the state re�ecting courses with industry certi�cations; Mrs. Gilhousen is interested in

information re how many students are enrolling in and how much capacity exists to accommodate the programs,

including teachers certi�ed to instruct the programs;

C6 CTE Out of State and Overnight Field Trips - no discussion;

C7 Approval to Advertise the Adoption and Set the Public Hearing for April 6, 2023 of K-5 Math and 6-12 Social Studies

Materials - Mr. Broskie noted the adoption process and necessity of choosing materials in alignment with new standards;

Page 8 of 248

DRAFT



additional discussion included what materials and manipulatives are included in the math adoption and the length

adopted curriculum remains in use;

C8 A�liation Agreement Between Clay County District Schools and Emerson College - no discussion;

C9 Proclamation #23-08 for National School Counseling Week - brief discussion to con�rm the masters degree necessary

for school counseling positions is  a state requirement

C10 Proposed Allocation Changes for 2022-2023 - no discussion;

C11 Monthly Financial Reports for December, 2022 - no discussion;

C12 Budget Amendment Report for December 31, 2022 - no discussion;

C13 Deletion of Certain Items Report January, 2023 - no discussion;

C14 BID Renewal - no discussion;

C15 Transportation Bus Purchase Agreement - brief discussion re the necessity of purchasing buses on a yearly cycle to

ensure buses are adequately updated and operational;

C16 Pre-quali�cation of Contractors - no discussion;

C17 Substantial and Final Completion of Middleburg High School Roof Replacement Building 1 - no discussion;

C18 Neptune Park-Thunderbolt Elementary School Property Lease Agreement with Clay County Board of County

Commissioners Storage Shed Building/Electrical Permit Application - brief discussion to clarify the area of land being

utilized; 

C19 Change Order #5 for Orange Park High School Stadium Repair/Replacement - Mr. Broskie noted that the stadium

and seating will be ready for graduation with some other infrastructure associated with this project pending;

C20 Wilkinson Elementary School Kitchen/Cafeteria Renovations (Freezer/Cooler Replacement/Ceiling) Contract Award -

no discussion;

C21 Change Order #1 for Clay High School Restroom Renovations - no discussion;

C22 Ridgeview Elementary School Roof Repair/Replacement Buildings 1, 2 & 3 - Shingles and Kitchen/Cafeteria

Renovations Contract Award - no discussion;

C23 Approval to Advertise and Notice o Public Hearing on amendments to School Board Policy 6.01 (B)1(a), Annual

Architect/Engineer Selection - brief discussion to clarify the limits statutorily established are all public and part of state

requirements; revising policy to align with current statutory limits will ensure there are no delays in the bidding of these

projects and no disruption to "summer projects";

Discussion Agenda

D1 Human Resources Special Action A - no discussion;

D2 Human Resources Special Action B - no discussion;

D3 RFP Renewal - Mrs. Gilhousen noted that she will be recusing herself from voting on this item due to an ethical

con�ict; 

D4 Public Hearing to Approve as Advertised Spring Park Elementary Attendance Zones and Revisions to Attendance

Zones to Surrounding Impacted Existing Schools - Mr. Broskie reviewed the process involved in establishing and revising

these attendance zones;

2. Presentation and Review of Level of Services for School Capacity and Student Use of Facilities

Level of Service Standards.pdf

Minutes:

Lance Addison, Coordinator of District Facilities and Planning, shared the attached comprehensive visual presentation re Level

of Service (LOS) Standards.  The de�nition, history, and purpose of concurrency were discussed.  By way of an Interlocal

Agreement for Coordinated Planning, the district established an LOS of 110% for each public school in 2006.  Both the bene�ts

and issues associated with the 10% capacity bu�er were discussed.  Reducing the LOS to 100% at this time will accelerate the

need to consider all options for mitigation, cause schools to reach the LOS threshold more quickly, resulting in more frequent

redistricting, necessitate the building of schools at a faster rate (�scal challenge), and increase the need for temporary space in

schools that currently don't need it.  A reduction in LOS at this time would not result in the desired goal of achieving fewer

portables throughout the district schools.  It is projected that reducing the LOS to 100% will cost the district more money and

the monitoring and management of growth is recommended, with this option revisited at a future time. 

Mr. Broskie noted a recent court ruling related to restroom use by student gender.  Clay County's practice is for students to use

the restroom associated with the student's biological gender at birth, with exceptions being brought to the school

administration for making any needed accommodations.  It was noted that the district is not currently experiencing any issues

re student restroom use.  Mrs. Skipper indicated Clay County is not exempt from issues occurring elsewhere and supports

taking the implemented practice and proactively creating a board policy for the safety of students.  Mrs. Bolla expressed
Page 9 of 248

DRAFT



concern for the safety of students that have personal identity questions and stressed this is a very personal situation where

families have been working with administrators on accommodating needs in unique situations.  Mrs. Gilhousen pointed out

that, historically, there have been non-gender conforming bathrooms as well as male and female bathrooms.  Bruce Bickner,

School Board Attorney, stated that the law does not currently support the proposed policy and court opinions are so con�icting

that the �nality is uncertain.  If the board creates policy at this time, it may become moot, with the issue potentially decided by

the U.S. Supreme Court.  Mr. Bickner pointed out that statutes govern this issue and there are many things that are a practice

but not taken into policy.  Mrs. Gilhousen supports adding this to the Student Code of Conduct and Family Handbook and being

strategic with the timing of policy as the issue progresses through the courts.  Mrs. Bolla and Mrs. Skipper also supported

adding this to the Student Code of Conduct, but Mrs. Skipper wishes to also create board policy.  With two board members not

present, discussion on this matter will continue at a future time.

Questions from the Audience  (None)

Superintendent Comments

3. Superintendent Comments

Minutes:

Arising from a question posed by a citizen at a recent strategic planning meeting, Mr. Broskie noted that the public comment

portion of the regular board meetings is the opportunity for citizens to express themselves re agenda items on which the

board will vote.  It is not intended to be a time to air a grievance, and discourse would not be appropriate because the

information is protected in students' educational records.  Citizens with a problem or grievance are encouraged to call the

district for sta� to intervene and problem-solve the issue at hand.

Mr. Broskie noted that this week is Literacy Week and encouraged people to involve themselves and interact with children and

literacy.

School Board Attorney Comments  (None)

School Board Comments

4. School Board Member Comments

Minutes:

Mrs. Bolla commented on an excellent Literacy Night, band competitions, and the Imagination Library as well as upcoming

Apple Awards and the All-County Chorus.

Mrs. Gilhousen is looking forward to reading poetry at Wilkinson Elementary, the beautiful Apple Awards and an opportunity to

attend a conference to hear Dr. Arnn, Hillsdale College, one of her personal education heroes.

Adjournment  (11:10 a.m.)

Superintendent of Schools School Board Chair

Page 10 of 248

DRAFT



Date: Feb 02 2023 (6:00 p.m.)

School Board of Clay County

Teacher Inservice Center, 2233 Village Square Parkway, Fleming Island, FL 32003

February 2, 2023 - School Board Regular Meeting

Student Showcase  (Fleming Island High Marching Band)

Invocation  (Deputy Chaplain Williams, Clay County Sheri�'s O�ce)

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Order  (Present: Erin Skipper, District 1; Mary Bolla, District 2, Beth Clark, District 3; Michele Hanson, District 4; Ashley

Gilhousen, District 5; Superintendent David Broskie)

Recognitions and Awards

1. Recognition of Fleming Island High, Oakleaf High, and Orange Park High Marching Bands Achievement at State Competition

Marching Band Recognition 2_2_23.pdf

Minutes:

John Sgromolo, Coordinator of District Athletics, recognized bands from Fleming Island High School, Orange Park High School,

and Oakleaf High School, for medaling in the Florida Marching Band Championships State Finals.  In attendance were:

Fleming Island Marching Band

Directors:  Mara Rose, Alex Buck, Jim Bruce

Drum Majors:  Noah Johnson, Michael Lowery, Chau Tran

Band Captains:  Hannah Ivy, Maddie Page

Orange Park Raiders Marching Band

Director:  Brett Pikuritz

Band Coordinator:  Isabell Shiver

Drum Majors:  Bella DuChemin, Cody Woronka

Band Captain:  Michee Civilus

Percussion Captain:  Jamaris Frierson

Colorguard Captains:  Viktorya Bradford, Kayleigh Kearns

Secretary:  Phaedra Smith

Oakleaf Knights Marching Band

Directors:  Chad Robbins, Chris Gugel

Band Captain:  Ethan Albrecht

Guard Captains:  Maria Torres-Bermudez, Miracle Haile

Drum Major:  Tristan Rivera

2. Recognize Fleming Island Elementary as a Purple Star School of Distinction

Page 11 of 248

DRAFT



FIE Purple Star School of Distinction.pdf

Minutes:

Kristi Gomez, Curriculum Specialist, recognized Fleming Island Elementary for being designated by the Florida Department of

Education as a Purple Star School of Distinction.  This designation recognizes schools that support the unique needs of military

families through the implementation of activities that highlight annual military recognition events, publicize support for military

students and families, provide opportunities for active-duty parents to volunteer at the school, and participate in service

projects that connect the school with the military community.

3. Recognize Student Selected to Participate in the 2023 United States Senate Youth Program

Minutes:

Kelly Watt, Chief of Sta�, recognized student Brady White, Fleming Island High School, for being selected as a representative in

the 2023 United States Senate Youth Program scholarship competition.  This program assists excelling high school students

interested in government to pursue public service and provides a foundation of knowledge and encouragement for those

considering a future in public service at the local, state, or national level.  Matthew Dews, North Florida Sta� Assistant to

Senator Marco Rubio, presented Mr. White with a letter from Senator Rubio, acknowledging his achievement. 

4. Recognition of 2022-2023 School Related Employee of the Year and Teacher of the Year

Minutes:

Carolyn Krall, President of Clay Education Foundation, and Gi Teevan, Board Chair, Clay Education Foundation, recognized the

2022-2023 Teacher of the Year and Support-Related Employee of the Year

Teacher of the Year - Heather Miller, Lake Asbury Elementary

Support Related Employee of the Year - Abieail Rosario-Castillo - Orange Park Elementary

Presenters

5. Clay Education Foundation Update

Clay Education Foundation Presentation_02 02 2023.pdf

Minutes:

Carolyn Krall, Clay Education Foundation, provided the attached visual presentation re Clay Education Foundation, highlighting

the following:

Purpose

Areas of Impact

Support of Educators

STEM Education

Literacy

College & Career Resources

6. Career and Technical Education Presentation

2023 CTE Month - Board Presentation (1).pptx

Minutes:

Alice Paulk, Supervisor of Career and Technical Education shared the attached visual presentation highlighting the wide variety

of Career and Technical Education (CTE) programs o�ered in Clay County Schools as well as the factors considered for

implementing programs and establishing career clusters.  Programs that will be introduced for the 2023-2024 school year

include a �re�ghting partnership with the Board of County Commissioners (located at Orange Park High) and Principles of

Teaching (o�ered at Clay High).  Funding sources for the various programs were also noted.  

Page 12 of 248

DRAFT



School Showcase  (Bannerman Learning Center, Stephanie Palmer, Principal)

Presentations from the Audience (Public Comment)

7. Public Comment

Minutes:

Public Speakers:

Jenifer Burghart

Douglas Brandon Cross Jr.

Tanya Kacsan 

Bruce Friedman

Shari McGri� 

Je�rey Dove

Kaylyn Lyons 

Consent Agenda

Superintendent

8. C1 - Minutes of School Board Special Meeting and School Board Workshop on December 20, 2022; Student Discipline

Hearings and Regular Meeting on January 5, 2023

2022 Dec 20 Special Mtg.pdf

2022 Dec 20 Workshop.pdf

2023 Jan 5 Student Hearings.pdf (Con�dential)

2022 Jan 5 Regular Mtg.pdf

Human Resources

9. C2 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Personnel Consent Agenda 2 2 2023.pdf

Instruction-Academic Services

10. C3 - Proclamation #23-06 to Establish February 2023 as Black History Month in Clay County Public Schools

Black History Month Proclamation 2023.pdf

11. C4 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

February 2023 Student Travel.pdf

Instruction-Career and Technical Education

12. C5 - Proclamation #23-07 for Career and Technical Education Month

Feb 2023 Proclamation #23-07.pdf

13. C6 - CTE Out of State and Overnight Field Trips

2022-2023 Florida FFA Calendar of Events.pdf

2022-2023 Florida SkillsUSA Calendar of Events.pdf

2022-2023 Florida TSA Calendar of Events.pdf

2022-2023 Florida FBLA Calendar of Events.pdf

2022-2023 Florida FCCLA Calendar of Events.pdf

Page 13 of 248

DRAFT



Instruction-Instructional Resources

14. C7 - APPROVAL TO ADVERTISE THE ADOPTION AND SET THE PUBLIC HEARING FOR APRIL 6, 2023 OF K-5 MATH AND 6-12

SOCIAL STUDIES MATERIALS

2022 K-5 Math and 6-12 Social Studies Adoption NOTICE OF APPROVAL TO ADVERTISE SB Policy.pdf

2022-2023 K-5 Math Preselection Committee Top Choices.pdf

2022-2023 6-12 Social Studies Preselection Committee Result.pdf

Instruction-Professional Development

15. C8 - A�liation Agreement between Clay County District Schools and Emerson College (EC).

230070 Emerson College.pdf

Executed Emerson College Agreement.pdf

Instruction-Climate and Culture

16. C9 - Proclamation #23-08 for National School Counseling Week

2023 National School Counseling Week Proclamation.docx.pdf

Business A�airs

17. C10 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2022-2023

22 23 Allocation Summary - Feb 2, 2023.pdf

Business A�airs-Accounting

18. C11 - Monthly Financial Reports for December, 2022

Dec 2022 Monthly Board Financial Report.pdf

Dec 2022 Monthly Board Property Report.pdf

Contracts Between $50K and $100K.pdf

19. C12 - Budget Amendment Report for December 31, 2022

Budget Amendment December 2022.pdf

Business A�airs-Property

20. C13 - DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT JANUARY, 2023

DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT JANUARY, 2023.pdf

Business A�airs-Purchasing

21. C14 - BID Renewal

Operations

22. C15 - Transportation Bus Purchase Agreement

Bus Purchase 1.27.23.pdf

Operations-Facilities

23. C16 - Pre-quali�cation of Contractors

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 2.2.23

24. C17 - Substantial and Final Completion of Middleburg High School Roof Replacement Building 1

Page 14 of 248

DRAFT



MHS Roof Repair.Replacement Substantial & Final Completion.pdf

25. C18 - Neptune Park -Thunderbolt Elementary School Property Lease Agreement with Clay County Board of County

Commissioners Storage Shed Building/Electrical Permit Application

CC Storage Shed Building Permit Application.pdf

26. C19 - Change Order #5 for Orange Park High School Stadium Repair/Replacement

CO 5 OPH Stadium Repair.Replacement.pdf

27. C20 - Wilkinson Elementary School Kitchen/Cafeteria Renovations (Freezer/Cooler Replacement/Ceiling) Contract Award

Wilkinson Elementary School Kitchen Cafeteria Renovations Bid Tab (1).pdf

Contract for WES Kitchen Cafeteria Renovations.pdf

28. C21 - Change Order #1 for Clay High School Restroom Renovations

CO 1 CHS Restroom Renovation.pdf

29. C22 - Ridgeview Elementary School Roof Repair/Replacement Buildings 1, 2 & 3 - Shingles and Kitchen/Cafeteria

Renovations Contract Award

Ridgeview Elementary School Roof Repair Replacement & Kitchen Cafeteria Renovations Bid Tab (1).pdf

Contract for RVE Roof Repair Replacement & Kitchen Cafeteria Renovations.pdf

30. C23 - Approval to Advertise and Notice of Public Hearing on Amendments to School Board Policy 6.01 (B)1(a), Annual

Architect/Engineer Selection

section-601-b1a-revision-1-1 (1).pdf

notice-of-approval-to-adv-policy-601-docx (1).pdf

Adoption of Consent Agenda

31. Adoption of Consent Agenda

Motion

Motion to Adopt Consent Agenda

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Mary Bolla

Second: Beth Clark

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

CCEA Update  (Victoria Kidwell)

CESPA Update  (None)

Superintendent's Update and Presentations

32. Superintendent's Update

Minutes:

Superintendent Broskie noted that the issues debated are important but care must be taken to not get so wrapped up in an

ideological stance that the focus of the work being children is forgotten.  
Page 15 of 248

DRAFT



Mr.Broskie shared the attached visual presentation highlighting the following:

Schools of the Month

Strategic Plan Town Halls

2024 Teacher of the Year and Support-Related Employee of the Year

Graduation Rate

Literacy Week

Upcoming Events

Discussion Agenda

Human Resources

33. D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

Special Action A - 2.2.2023.pdf (Con�dential)

Motion

Motion to Approve Human Resources Special Action A

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Mary Bolla

Second: Michele Hanson

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

34. D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

Special Action B - 2.2.2023.pdf (Con�dential)

Motion

Motion to Approve Human Resources Special Action B

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Michele Hanson

Second: Mary Bolla

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

Business A�airs-Purchasing

35. D3 - RFP Renewal

Minutes:

Ashley Gilhousen, School Board Member District 5, provided CE Form 8A Memorandum of Voting Con�ict for State O�cers and

recused herself from voting on this item.

Motion
Page 16 of 248

DRAFT



Motion to Approve RFP Renewal

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Mary Bolla

Second: Erin Skipper

Ashley Gilhousen - Abstain

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

Operations-Facilities

36. D4 - Public Hearing to Approve as Advertised Spring Park Elementary Attendance Zones and Revisions to Attendance Zones

to Surrounding Impacted Existing Schools

SpringPark_BoardRecommendedZone.jpg

Spring Park Zone Advertisement.pdf

Minutes:

Chair Gilhousen opened the public hearing.  With no one coming forward to speak to the item, the public hearing was closed.

Motion

Motion to Approve as Advertised Spring Park Elementary Attendance Zones and Revisions to Attendance Zones to

Surrounded Impacted Existing Schools

Vote Results ( Approved )

Motion: Michele Hanson

Second: Erin Skipper

Ashley Gilhousen - Aye

Mary Bolla - Aye

Beth Clark - Aye

Michele Hanson - Aye

Erin Skipper - Aye

School Board Attorney Remarks  (None)

School Board Member Remarks

37. School Board Member Comments

Minutes:

Mrs. Bolla thanked Fleming Island Elementary for their recognition of School Board Appreciation Month.  She recently

participated in Future Business Leaders of America (FBLA) judging through the Career and Technical Education program and

strongly encouraged others to consider future participation.  She enjoyed recent events such as Literacy Week, W.E. Cherry's

spelling bee, All-County Band, All-County Choruses, the Dolly Parton Imagination Library program, and appreciates the support

and generosity of Garber Automall for opening their doors to host Tools4Schools and providing a car for the Teacher of the

Year as well as funds for the Support-Related Employee of the Year.

Mrs. Skipper would like to see an expansion of The Imagination Library, whose funding comes from donations.  She

appreciated the many accomplishments of Brady White, Fleming Island High senior, and his well-performed civic duties.

Mrs. Clark appreciated the awesome and growing programs o�ered by CTE and advised that more information will be

forthcoming re a group that has recently formed and will be hosting a Battle of the Ballroom to raise $50,000 in scholarships
Page 17 of 248

DRAFT



for vocational students.  She would like to have a workshop to explore what can be done for �xing transportation for all

students.  This will be discussed at the next workshop, scheduled on February 21, 2023.

Mrs. Hanson shared that her passion has been for teaching reading and literacy to children, and she can embrace and

have compassion for what every single person has said about books, reading, and the importance of acceptance.  She shared

that this school board meeting was in honor of her father, who recently passed and who was very proud of her serving on the

School Board.

Mrs. Gilhousen noted the celebration of accomplishments this month and appreciated the opportunity to spend some time in

the classroom, sharing books and poetry.  A discussion of board member priorities will also be included at the next workshop. 

The board discussed the Master Board program as an avenue of training and agreed to participate in this program.

Adjournment  (8:13 p.m.)

Superintendent of Schools School Board Chair

Page 18 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C2 - Approval of the Revised 9 Month Employee Work Calendar

Description
The adopted payroll calendars serve as the instrument for the reporting of employees for payroll purposes.  

Gap Analysis
Section V (5.04) of the School Board of Clay County rules states that the School Board shall annually adopt a payroll calendar
for pay periods and paydays for the employees of the Board.  Approval of a calendar is necessary to be in compliance with this
rule.

Previous Outcomes
All proposed 2023-2024 payroll calendars are developed based on approved work calendars for Summer School, Florida Youth
Challenge Academy, and the Revised 9 Month Employee Calendar which were adopted on January 5, 2023.

Expected Outcomes
Proposed calendars should be approved by the school board.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective, equitable, and efficient use of resources.

Recommendation
Approve the 2023-2024 revised 9 Month Employee Calendar for elementary ISS assistants, moving from 183 to 188 days, to
align with the student calendar.

Contact
Kelly Watt, Chief of Staff, kelly.watt@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$16,908.84

Review Comments

Attachments

Calendar - Employee Work  - 2023-2024 (2).pdf

Page 19 of 248

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/calendar-employee-work-2023-2024-2.pdf


DR
AF
T

School District of Clay County
Employee Work Calendar

2023-2024

Monday, July 3, 2023                                                     First Day, All 12-Month Personnel (4-Day Week)

Tuesday, July 4, 2023 Independence Day (Observed), Non-Working Day, ALL PERSONNEL

Monday, July 17, 2023 First Day, 11-Month Personnel, Instructional & Support (9.38 hr. 4 day work week)

Wednesday, August 2, 2023                                           First Day, 10-Month Personnel, Instructional, Support & Cafeteria Managers

Tuesday, August 8, 2023 First Day, 9-Mo. Teacher Assts, 9-Mo. Instr. Assts, Guardians. (Except Elem. ISS Assistants)

Wednesday, August 9, 2023 First Day, 9-Mo. Cafeteria Assts. & Van Drivers

Thursday, August 10, 2023 First Day, 9- Mo. Elementary ISS Assistants, Fuel Attendant, Bus Drivers, Bus Monitors

Monday, September 4, 2023                                           Labor Day - Non-Working Day, ALL PERSONNEL

Monday, October 16, 2023                                             Planning Day, Working Day, All 10, 11, 12-Mo. Personnel
Non-Working Days, All 9 Mo. Personnel

Friday, November 10, 2023 Veterans’ Day (Observed), Non-Working Day, ALL PERSONNEL

Monday, Nov. 20 – Friday, Nov. 24, 2023                     Thanksgiving, Non-Working Days, All 9, 10, 11-Mo. Personnel

Thursday, Nov. 23 & Friday, Nov. 24, 2023 Thanksgiving, Non-Working Days, ALL PERSONNEL

Thursday, Dec. 21, 2023 thru Thurs., Jan. 4, 2024         Christmas/New Year’s, Non-Working Days, All 9, 10, 11-Mo. Personnel
Working Days, All 12-Mo. Personnel

Monday, December. 25, 2023 Christmas Day (Observed), Non-Working Day, ALL PERSONNEL

Monday, January 1, 2024                                                New Year’s Day (Observed), Non-Working Day, ALL PERSONNEL

Friday, January 5, 2024 Planning Day, Working Days, All 10, 11, 12-Mo. Personnel
Non-Working Days, All 9 Mo. Personnel

Monday, January 15, 2024 Martin Luther King Day, Non-Working Day, ALL PERSONNEL

Monday, February 19, 2024                                            Presidents’ Day, Non-Working Day, All 9, 10, 11 Mo. Personnel & Cafeteria Managers
Working Day, All 12-Mo. Personnel

Friday, March 8, 2024 Planning Day, Working Days, All 10, 11, 12-Mo. Personnel
Non-Working Days, All 9 Mo. Personnel

Monday, March 11 - Friday March 15, 2024                 Spring Break, Non -Working Days, All 9, 10, 11-Mo. Personnel
Working Days, All 12-Mo Personnel

Friday, March 29, 2024 Good Friday (Observed), Non-Working Day, ALL PERSONNEL

Friday, April 12, 2024 Fair Day, Non-Working Day, All 9, 10, 11 Mo. Personnel
Working Day, Cafeteria Managers & 12 Mos. Personnel

Friday, May 24, 2024                                                     Last Day, 9- Mo. Elementary ISS Assts.

Monday, May 27, 2024 Memorial Day, Non-Working Day, ALL PERSONNEL

Wednesday, May 29, 2024                                             Last Day, 9- Mo. Secondary Cafe Assts. and Van Drivers

Thursday, May 30, 2024                                                Last Day, ALL 9-Mo. Bus Drivers, Fuel Attendants, Bus Monitors, Elementary Cafeteria
Assts. & Van Drivers, Teacher Assts., Instructional Assts, Guardians

Friday, May 31, 2024 Last Day, 10-Month Instructional, Support & Cafeteria Managers

Monday, June 3, 2024 4-Day Work Week Begins (9.38 hr/day)

Tuesday, June 11, 2024 Last Day, 11-Mo. Instr. & Support Personnel

Thursday, June 27, 2024                                                 Last Day, All 12-Mo. Personnel (4-Day Week)

Altered 9-Month Calendars for Early Dismissal:   ALL Early Dismissal Days are Working Days except for:
9-Month Elementary, Jr/Sr High  Cafeteria Assistants/Van Drivers ONLY – Non-Working, on Dec. 20, 2023
Board Approved: January 5, 2023

Page 20 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C3 - Proclamation #23-09, Clay County Agricultural Fair

Description
Significant events that affect the lives of Clay County students and employees deserve to be recognized by action.  By approving
this Proclamation, the School Board will show support and recognition of the Clay County Agricultural Fair.  
 

Gap Analysis
The School Board endorses this event and hereby encourages all citizens to attend.  The Fair serves as a showcase for Clay
County agriculture with emphasis on educational experiences.  Clay County youth organizations such as 4-H clubs and Future
Farmers of America play an important part in the Fair.

Previous Outcomes
The Fair provides fun and entertainment, as well as educational experiences.

Expected Outcomes
The School Board will continue to support the Clay County Agricultural Fair, and through the Fair, continue to provide fun
entertainment and educational experiences, serving as a showcase for Clay County agriculture.
 

Strategic Plan Goal
N/A

Recommendation
Approve Proclamation #23-09, 2023 Clay County Agricultural Fair

Contact
Superintendent David S. Broskie, Superintendent of Schools; david.broskie@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Proclamation 23-09 2023 Clay County Fair.pdf

Page 21 of 248

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/proclamation-23-09-2023-clay-county-fair.pdf


SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 
PROCLAMATION # 23-09 

 
 
 
WHEREAS, Clay County will hold its 37th annual Agricultural Fair on March 30- April 9, 2023; and 
 
WHEREAS, the School Board of Clay County endorses this event with the Clay County Fair Association 
and hereby encourages all citizens to attend and enjoy this educational and entertaining event; and 
 
WHEREAS, this fair will serve as a showcase for Clay County agriculture with emphasis on educational 
experience concerning Clay County’s leading industry; and 
 
WHEREAS, various Clay County youth organizations such as 4-H clubs and Future Farmers of America 
play an important part in the Fair; and 
 
WHEREAS, the School Board of Clay County encourages all citizens to demonstrate their support of 
our youth by taking an active interest in their activities at the Fair; and 
 
WHEREAS, Agricultural Fairs provide fun and entertainment as well as education for the entire family; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Clay County Fair Board of Directors, committee members, patron life members and 
many volunteers have done an outstanding job of putting together the Clay County Agricultural Fair 
which will provide entertainment and educational experiences for children and adults of all ages. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the School Board of Clay County, Florida, fully supports, 
celebrates, and encourages all citizens to attend and enjoy the 37th annual Clay County Agricultural 
Fair. 
 
Duly adopted and approved by the School Board of Clay County, Florida, this 2nd day of March, 
2023. 
        
 
 
ATTEST:       

 
             
_________________________________         ____________________________________ 
David S.Broskie                        Mary S. Bolla, School Board Chair 
Superintendent of Schools         
Clay County, Florida  

Page 22 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C4 - ENA WAN Contract Amendment to add Spring Park Elementary

Description
Education Networks of America is Clay’s Internet Service Provider who also provides interconnectivity to every school site
through our Dark Fiber Ring. This amendment adds Spring Park Elementary to the fiber network.

Gap Analysis
We currently do not have an agreement with ENA to provide network services to our new school. This amendment will fill that
gap in the contract.

Previous Outcomes
NA. This is the first school to be added to this contract.

Expected Outcomes
Approving this amendment adds ENA’s ability to provide the school with internet access.

Strategic Plan Goal
GOAL 2 - Improve management of district-wide operations and facilities
Strategy 2.1: Improve technology in all classrooms and district buildings

Recommendation
To approve the Amendment to the ENA WAN contract.

Contact
Ethan Caren, Director of Information & Technology Services, ethan.caren@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
$40,800 Total Cost per year. E-Rate Program pays for 80% of total cost. District cost is $8,160 per year.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 23 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C5 - Personnel Consent Agenda

Description
Florida Statutes, State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification and/or action regarding
decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  Actions regarding personnel have been
recommended by Supervisors, approved by the Superintendent and are being forwarded to the Board for action or, if appropriate,
for information.  Personnel Actions, Transfer Requests, Pre-employments, Leave Forms or Directives from the Superintendent
are available for review in the Human Resources Division.

Gap Analysis
These personnel actions are necessary for the effective operation of the school district.

Previous Outcomes
The Clay County School Board has approved each month a Personnel Consent Agenda which contains appointments, re-
appointments, transfers, redesignations, retirements, resignations, and conclude employments.

Expected Outcomes
Approval of the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.
 
Initiative 5.1.1 - Recruit and retain highly skilled, qualified, and diverse educators, leaders, and support staff.

Recommendation
To approve the Personnel Consent Agenda.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources.  (904) 336-6701 Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Personnel changes involving already-allocated positions will result in salary impact per the current Board-approved Salary
Schedule.  This also includes supplemental positions.  See current backup for allocation changes for impact of new positions.

Review Comments

Attachments

Personnel Consent Agenda 3.2.2023.pdf

Page 24 of 248

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/personnel-consent-agenda-322023.pdf


Page 25 of 248

DRAFT



Page 26 of 248

DRAFT



Page 27 of 248

DRAFT



Page 28 of 248

DRAFT



Page 29 of 248

DRAFT



Page 30 of 248

DRAFT



Page 31 of 248

DRAFT



Page 32 of 248

DRAFT



Page 33 of 248

DRAFT



Page 34 of 248

DRAFT



Page 35 of 248

DRAFT



Page 36 of 248

DRAFT



Page 37 of 248

DRAFT



Page 38 of 248

DRAFT



Page 39 of 248

DRAFT



Page 40 of 248

DRAFT



Page 41 of 248

DRAFT



Page 42 of 248

DRAFT



Page 43 of 248

DRAFT



Page 44 of 248

DRAFT



Page 45 of 248

DRAFT



Page 46 of 248

DRAFT



Page 47 of 248

DRAFT



Page 48 of 248

DRAFT



Page 49 of 248

DRAFT



Page 50 of 248

DRAFT



Page 51 of 248

DRAFT



Page 52 of 248

DRAFT



Page 53 of 248

DRAFT



Page 54 of 248

DRAFT



Page 55 of 248

DRAFT



Page 56 of 248

DRAFT



Page 57 of 248

DRAFT



Page 58 of 248

DRAFT



Page 59 of 248

DRAFT



Page 60 of 248

DRAFT



Page 61 of 248

DRAFT



Page 62 of 248

DRAFT



Page 63 of 248

DRAFT



Page 64 of 248

DRAFT



Page 65 of 248

DRAFT



Page 66 of 248

DRAFT



Page 67 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C6 -  Summer Programs Manual

Description
Each year, Clay County hosts several summer programs for the educational benefit of students.  These programs are
fundamentally designed to either remediate students or to maintain educational levels.  These programs range from pre-
kindergarten to high school levels.  Programs are held at various sites and virtually in the District and have approved guidelines
attached to each program.  Special education students have access to each program sponsored.
 

Gap Analysis
By offering these programs, the District will help keep students progressing forward either in their reading skills or seeking
grade/credit recovery.  The benefit of these programs mostly impacts struggling or at-risk students.  
 

Previous Outcomes
Students in all of the programs either retained learning levels or increased learning levels due to the summer programs being
offered.  At the junior high level, students were able to be promoted due to the passage of courses offered during this summer
period. Similarly, students in grades 9-12 recouped credits due to the summer high school program.  This enables the students to
recoup credits or to maintain a pace so that receiving a high school diploma is possible.    
                                                     

Expected Outcomes
Students will continue to increase learning levels or recoup credits/courses in all programs.  Programs that are offered (with the
targeted audiences) are:

Voluntary Pre-K: Children who will be 4-years old on or before 9/1/21 and have not used any portion of a Certificate of
Eligibility from any Florida coalition during the 21-22 year;

-

Summer Reading Camp: students eligible include: rising K, K, 1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th, and 5th grade students;-
6th grade and Junior High: students seeking to recover failed courses (virtual);-
High School: 9-12 students seeking credit recovery (virtual);-
Algebra 1 Credit Recovery for ESE Only; Students with disabilities who failed this course;-
Algebra 1 "Boot Camp"; students who have not passed the Algebra 1 EOC.  This is a review session;-
11th-12th Grade ESOL; ELL students scoring level 1 or 2 on the ELA FSA;-
ESE Extended School Year: ESE students who have been determined to need ESY services;-
Bannerman Learning Center:  6th - 12th grade students who are seeking to recover one or less credits to be promoted.-

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal:   Develop a High Quality and Aligned Instructional System
Strategy:  1.1.4 Explore innovative program options for rigorous opportunities at the elementary and secondary levels.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve the Summer Program Manual and the Calendar

Contact
Roger Dailey, Chief Academic Officer, 904.336.6904, roger.dailey@myoneclay.net
Treasure Pickett, Director K-12 Academic Services, 904-336-6918, treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net

Page 68 of 248

DRAFT



Financial Impact
$250,000.00

Review Comments

Attachments

March 2023 - 2023 Clay County Summer Programs Manual.pdf

Page 69 of 248

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/march-2023-2023-clay-county-summer-programs-manual_1.pdf


The Manual

Page 70 of 248

DRAFT



Clay County School Board Members

District I

The Honorable Erin Skipper

District II

The Honorable Mary Bolla, Chairman

District III

The Honorable Beth Clark

District IV

The Honorable Michele Hanson

District V

The Honorable Ashley Gilhousen

Superintendent of Schools

The Honorable David Broskie

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 1

Page 71 of 248

DRAFT



Table of Contents

Table of Contents 2

2023 Summer Programs Overview 3

Summer Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten Program (SVPK) 5

Rising K - 5th Grade Summer Reading Camp 8

6th Grade & Junior High Credit Recovery 11

High School Credit Recovery 14

Algebra 1 Credit Recovery for ESE ONLY 17

Algebra 1 Boot Camp 19

11th- 12th Grade ESOL Summer Language Program 21

ESE Extended School Year 23

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 2

Page 72 of 248

DRAFT



2023 Summer Programs Overview
VPK and Rising K - 5th Grade Summer Reading Camp Calendar

6th - 12th Grade Credit Recovery Calendar

Extended School Year (ESY) Calendar

Program Dates Audience Description of
Program

Sites Funding
Source

Voluntary Pre-K
Summer Program

Program Details
pp. 5-7

Teacher & Assistant
Training

Wed. 5/31/2023 8-3:30
Onsite at DIS

Program Dates
Teacher, Assistant, &

Students
Mon-Fri

6/1/2023- 7/31/2023
T & A: 7:30-4:00

S: 8-4:00
(38 Days)

No School
7/3/2023-7/7/2023

Children who will be 4 years old on
or before September 1, 2022 and

have not used any portion of a
Certificate of Eligibility from any

Florida coalition during the
2022-23 school year. The goal of

SVPK is to prepare young scholars
for school readiness.

Summer VPK

*evidence-based
curriculum
*evidence-based
instruction
*breakfast and lunch
served
*free for eligible
students

Doctors Inlet  (DIS)

Summer VPK teachers must hold a
valid and current teaching
certificate and must have

completed the required three 5-hour
emergent literacy courses and the

student performance standards
training course.

Project
1458

Fund 100

Rising K, K, 1st,
2nd, 3rd, 4th, &

5th Grade
Summer Reading

Camp

Program Details
pp. 8-10

Teachers, Counselors,
Nurses, & Assistants

Rising K-2
Training

Wed. 5/31/2023 8-3:30

Grades 3-5
Training

Thurs. 6/1/2023 8-3:30

Rising K-5 Planning
Thurs. 6/8/2023 9-12:00

Post Planning
Thurs. 7/20/2023 12-1:30

Program Dates
Teachers, Counselors,
Nurses, & Assistants

Mon-Fri
6/12/2023-7/20/2023

8:00-12:00

Students
Mon-Fri

6/12/2023-7/20/2023
8:30-11:30
(20 Days)

No School
7/3/2023-7/7/2023

Eligibility for Summer Reading
Camp (SRC) is determined by
state and district assessment
data. Per state statute, 3rd

grade students attending SRC
will be assigned to a reading

endorsed teacher. The goal of
the SRC is to promote the

development of foundational
reading skills to close

achievement gaps to ensure
students are developing into
proficient readers, writers,
speakers, listeners, and

thinkers.

Summer Reading
Camp

*supports rising
kindergarten- 5th
grade students
*evidence-based
curriculum
*evidence-based
instruction
*transportation
provided
*free for eligible
students

Coppergate (CGE)
Discovery Oaks (DOE)

Doctors Inlet (DIS)
McRae (MRE)

Middleburg (MBE)
Montclair (MCE)

SBJ Elementary (SBJ)
Shadowlawn (SLE)
Thunderbolt (TBE)

*CVA students who are eligible
to attend the SRC will be
assigned to a SRC site based
on their home address.

NOTE:  Reading Camp teachers
must be either Reading Endorsed
or Reading Certified
s.1011.62(8)(a)(5). 3rd grade SRC
teachers must also be highly
effective s.1008.25(7). Inclusion
teachers must also be ESE
Certified.
Reading Camp school counselors
are certified or pursuing Master’s
program level certification  in school
counseling.

Grant
4813 June
and July

2023

Fund 443

6th Grade &
Junior High Credit

Recovery

Program Details
pp. 11 - 13

Teachers:
Mon-Thurs

6/8/2023-7/12/2023

Students:
Mon-Thurs

6/12/2023-7/11/2023

6th-8th grade students* who are
seeking to recover one or less
credits/courses to be promoted

*Standard diploma, including
students with disabilities in

inclusion and self-contained
classrooms

Students will use
Edgenuity Software for

14 days in a virtual
learning setting.

Program will be offered through
a virtual platform.  Please

contact the school concerning
registration and other required

information.

Grant
4813 June
and July

2023

Fund 443

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 3

Page 73 of 248

DRAFT



High School
Credit Recovery

Program Details
pp. 14 - 16

Teachers:
Mon-Thurs

6/8/2023-7/12/2023

Students:
Mon-Thurs

6/12/2023-7/11/2023

9th-12th grade students* who are
seeking to recover one or less
credits/courses to be promoted

*Standard diploma, including
students with disabilities in

inclusion and self-contained
classrooms

Students will use
Edgenuity software for

14 days in a virtual
learning setting.

Program will be offered through
a virtual platform.  Please

contact the school concerning
registration and other required

information.

Grant
4813 June
and July

2023

Fund 443

Program Dates Audience Description of
Program

Sites Funding
Source

Algebra I Credit
Recovery for ESE

ONLY

Program Details
pp. 17 - 18

Teachers:
6/08/2023- 7/13/2023

Students &
Assistants:

6/12/2023- 7/13/2023

No school on
7/3/2023-7/6/2023

Students with disabilities who are
seeking to recover Algebra 1 credit

and/or did not successfully pass
the Algebra 1 End-of-Course

(EOC) Assessment

A free program
providing students with
disabilities  with every
opportunity to pass the

Algebra 1
End-of-Course (EOC)

Assessment

KHH
OHS
RHS

Transportation will be provided
for all students.

Grant
4813 June
and July

2023

Fund 443

Algebra I Boot
Camp

Program Details
pp. 19-20

Teachers:
3 Days

Planning Day
7/13/2023

7/17,18,19/2023

Students:
7/17/2023-19/2023

Students* who did not successfully
pass the Algebra 1 End-of-Course

(EOC) Assessment
*Standard diploma, including
students with disabilities in

inclusion and self-contained
classrooms

A program offered face
to face that provides
students with every

opportunity to pass the
Algebra 1

End-of-Course (EOC)
Assessment

Program will be offered face to
face at the home school (high

schools only)
Grant

4813 June
and July

2023

Fund 443

11th-12th ESOL
Summer

Language
Program

Program Details
pp. 21-22

11th and 12th
Grade ESOL

Forms

Teachers:
Mon-Thurs

6/8/2023- 6/22/2023

Students:
Mon-Thurs

6/12/2023 -6/22/2023

English Language Learners (ELLs)
categorized as a new arrival,
non-English speaker, or as

recommended

A free summer
language program

offered virtually
providing ELLs the

opportunity to enhance
the English Language
skills needed to pass
assessments required
to earn a high school

diploma

Program will be offered virtually
via synchronous sessions

Grant
4813 June
and July

2023

Fund 443

ESE Extended
School Year

Program Details
pp. 23-27

ESE ESY
Calendar

Teacher
Planning

6/7/2023 - 6/8/2023
Assistant & Nurse

Planning
6/8/2023

Program Dates all
staff & students

Monday/Wednesday
6/12/2023- 7/12/2023

Tuesday/Thursday
6/13/2023- 7/13/2023

No school on
7/3/2023-7/6/2023

Students with disabilities who have
been determined to need ESY
services based on IEP team

determination.
The ESY calendar is a general

framework for services; The IEP
team makes the decision
regarding ESY services

necessary for the provision of
FAPE.

Extended school year
services are available

to provide a Free
Appropriate Public

Education (FAPE) for
students with

disabilities

*ESY Sites
McRae Elementary

Lake Asbury Jr. High
Bannerman Learning Center

*Students are assigned to an
ESY site based on their
geographical location.
Students are placed at BLC
based on their needs.

Grant
4813 June
and July

2023

Fund 443

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 4

Page 74 of 248

DRAFT



Summer Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten Program (SVPK)

District Contact

Bianca Montoro 904-336-6965 bianca.montoro@myoneclay.net

Location Feeders Meals Cost

Doctors Inlet
Elementary (DIS)

Entire school district Students will be
provided breakfast,
lunch, and a snack
during the program.

Free with a Valid
Certificate of Eligibility

Summer Voluntary Pre-Kindergarten Program Calendar

Teacher &
Assistant

Teacher & Assistant Key Pickup, Curriculum Professional Learning, and
Planning:

● Doctors Inlet Elementary
● Wednesday, May 31, 2023
● 8:00 a.m.-3:30 p.m.

Teacher & Assistant Summer VPK Program Dates:
● Doctors Inlet Elementary
● Thursday, June 1, 2023-Monday, July 31, 2023
● 7:30 a.m.-4:00 p.m.
● Monday-Friday

Students Summer VPK Program
● Thursday, June 1, 2023-Monday, July 31, 2023
● 8:00 a.m. - 4:00 p.m.
● Monday-Friday

Important Dates No Summer VPK during the week of Monday, July 3-Friday, July 7, 2023

Student Registration

Student Eligibility
The SVPK is a free, eight-week (38 days) summer learning program that provides instruction to
students, preparing them for kindergarten readiness. The SVPK program enhances students'
language and literacy, math, and social skills.

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 5

Page 75 of 248

DRAFT



Eligible participants must be 4 years old on or before September 1, 2022 and have not used any
portion of a Certificate of Eligibility from any Florida coalition during the 2022-2023 school year.

Student Notification
Parents can access the 2023 Summer VPK Flyer with registration information on the District VPK
Website, www.oneclay.net/vpk

Student Registration
To register, parents must obtain a Summer Certificate of Eligibility from the Florida Early Learning
Coalition at https://familyservices.floridaearlylearning.com/. The parent must then take the Certificate
of Eligibility, along with the other required Clay County registration documents, to the VPK Summer
School location to register the child into the SVPK program.

Curriculum & Instruction

Time 8:00 a.m.-4:00 p.m.

Curriculum
Early Literacy and Learning Model/Plus (ELLM/Plus)
Story Champs, KidLips, Lexia Core 5, and Heggerty
Florida Early Learning and Developmental Standards

Instructional
Methodologies

Direct, explicit, multisensory instruction: oral language, vocabulary,
phonological awareness, math (emergent literacy and math)

Materials
Vocabulary rich readers for dialogic reading, manipulatives for phonological
awareness and math instruction, letter naming cards, realia for building
background and schema

Assessment
Screening: Florida’s Star Early Literacy VPK Assessment
Progress Monitoring: Lexia Core 5 and the VPK Paper-Based Assessment
Outcome Measure: Florida’s Star Early Literacy VPK Assessment

Student Policies

Student Code of Conduct
The “Student Code of Conduct” policies are to be followed during all summer school offerings.

Attendance
Students may not be absent for more than 3 days. In addition, repeated tardy or late pick-up (three or
more) may also result in the student being withdrawn from the Summer VPK program.

Student Records

Initiating Summer VPK Student Records

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 6

Page 76 of 248

DRAFT



VPK student records will be created upon completion of the district Summer VPK registration
process. VPK student records will be stored in digital cum folders and shared electronically with
Doctors Inlet Elementary. Doctors Inlet Elementary staff will submit each student’s completed
Certificate of Eligibility (COE) to Bianca Montoro. The Summer VPK teacher will administer Florida’s
Star Early Literacy VPK Assessment during the first and last week of the Summer VPK program.

Closing Out Summer VPK Student Records
The Summer VPK teacher will report student progress on Florida’s Star Early Literacy VPK
Assessment to families.

VPK Budget and Finance

Voluntary Prekindergarten – Fund 100 Function 5500 Project 1458 - June and July 2023

● VPK Summer Teachers 100-5500128-cost center-1458-0000-000-0

● VPK Summer Assistant 100-5500158-cost center-1458-0000-000-0

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 7

Page 77 of 248

DRAFT



Rising K - 5th Grade Summer Reading Camp

District Contact

Bianca Montoro 904-336-6965 bianca.montoro@myoneclay.net

Locations Feeders Meals Cost

The Summer Reading Camp
will be hosted at CGE, DOE,
DIS, MRE, MBE, MCE, SBJ,
SLE, and TBE. Students
attending the Summer
Reading Camp will be
assigned to a teacher at one of
the program sites. *CVA
students who are eligible to
attend the SRC will be
assigned to a SRC site based
on their home address.

CGE= ROE & TES
DOE= OVE & POE
DIS= LES & SPC
MRE= KHE
MBE= CHE & WES
MCE=GPE, OPE, RVE
SBJ= AES & WEC
SLE= CEB & LAE
TBE= PES & FIE

Meals are not included.
Students will be provided
a daily snack during the

program.

Free

Rising K, K, 1st, 2nd, 3rd, 4th, & 5th Grade Summer Reading Camp Calendar

Teachers (ESE
& General Ed),
Counselors,
Nurses, &
Assistants

Rising K-2 Teachers, Counselors, Nurses, & Assistants SRC Curriculum
Professional Learning

● Wednesday, May 31, 2023
● MPC in Green Cove Springs,
● 8:00 a.m.-3:30 p.m.

Grades 3-5 Teachers & Assistants SRC Curriculum Professional Learning
● Thursday, June 1, 2023
● MPC in Green Cove Springs
● 8:00 a.m.-3:30 p.m.

Rising K-Grade 5 Teachers, Counselors, Nurses, & Assistants Pre Planning &
Key Pickup

● Thursday, June 8, 2023
● Assigned SRC School Sites
● 9 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.

Rising K-Grade 5 Teachers, Counselors, Nurses, & Assistants SRC Program
Dates

● Monday-Thursday
● June 12, 2023-July 20, 2023
● Assigned SRC School Sites
● 8:00 a.m.-12:00 p.m.

Rising K-Grade 5 Teacher, Counselors, Nurses, & Assistants Post Planning &
Key Turn-in

● Thursday, July 20, 2023
● Assigned SRC School Sites

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 8

Page 78 of 248

DRAFT



● 12:00 p.m.-1:30 p.m.

NOTE:  Reading Camp teachers must be either Reading Endorsed or Reading
Certified s.1011.62(8)(a)(5). 3rd grade SRC teachers must also be highly
effective s.1008.25(7). Inclusion teachers must also be ESE Certified. Summer
Reading Camp school counselors are certified or pursuing Master’s program
level certification in school counseling.

Students Summer Reading Camp Program Dates
● Monday June 12, 2023-Thursday, July 20, 2023
● 8:30 a.m.-11:30 a.m.
● Monday-Thursday

Important Dates No Summer Reading Camp during the week of Monday, July 3-Friday, July 7,
2023

Attendance
(Per page 44 of
the CCDS
2022-23 Student
Progression
Plan)

The district policy for Summer Reading Camp attendance requires that students
not miss more than two days of camp. In the event a student is absent more
than two days he/she will be withdrawn from Summer Reading Camp. 3rd
grade students who are dropped from the Summer Reading Camp due to
attendance will not have the opportunity to take the SAT-10 test at the
conclusion of camp. In addition, repeated tardiness or late pick-up (three or
more) will also result in the student being withdrawn from the Summer Reading
Camp program. This attendance policy is in place to ensure that students are
provided with the maximum time for intensive reading instruction and
intervention.

Student Registration

Eligibility
Eligibility for Summer Reading Camp (SRC) is determined by state and district assessment data.
Per state statute, 3rd grade students attending SRC will be assigned to a reading endorsed
teacher. The goal of the SRC is to promote the development of foundational reading and literacy
skills to close achievement gaps.

Notification
School site administrators will notify and call students and establish the school of attendance via a
parent letter: Sample Rising K-5 Parent Notification Letter.

Registration
Once eligible students are invited, parents will complete the online registration, via the link embedded
in the notification letter. School sites will assist parents with online registration if needed. If a parent
does not have access to the internet, they can give verbal acknowledgement of attendance and the
school will enroll them.

Curriculum & Instruction

Time 8:30 a.m.-11:30 a.m.

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 9

Page 79 of 248

DRAFT



Curriculum Florida's Benchmarks for Excellent Student Thinking (B.E.S.T.) Standards for
English Language Arts (ELA)

Instructional
Methodologies

Brick and Mortar Learning Environment: Whole Group: Direct, Explicit Instruction
using the Gradual Release of Responsibility Model to support a universal design
of learning for inclusivity. Small Group: Direct, Explicit, Systematic Instruction
using multisensory modalities for phonological awareness, phonics, vocabulary,
fluency, and comprehension.

Materials ● Story Champs
● Heggerty’s Phonological Awareness & Phonemic Awareness
● Lexia Core 5
● PRIDE Reading Program
● KidLips
● Decodables
● B.E.S.T. Booklist Books for Read Alouds
● Corrective Reading Decoding
● Multisensory Foundational Skill Building Manipulatives for Reading
● Sound Walls
● Social-Emotional Learning Activities

Assessment Screening: CUBED Assessment and the PAST Assessment
Progress Monitoring: Lexia Core 5
Summative: CUBED Assessment, PAST Assessment, & SAT-10 (Grade 3 Only)

Student Records

Initiating Summer Reading Camp Records
Prior to the first day of the program, the district will provide Summer Reading Camp teachers with
available student academic and registration information. SRC teachers will monitor student growth
using a variety of assessments. SRC teachers will update student assessment data in the
assessment HUB. SRC teachers will communicate beginning, mid, and end of SRC assessment data
with students and their families.

For students with medical needs, refer to the process outlined in the Student Health Care Section of
the ESY Task Instructions, which can be found in the Extended School Year section of this manual.

Closing Out Summer Reading Camp Student Screening and Progress Monitoring Records
Summer Reading Camp teachers will ensure beginning and end of SRC assessment data has been
entered into the assessment HUB. 3rd grade student performance on the SAT-10 will be provided to
the principal to communicate to families.

Rising K - 5th Grade Reading Camp Budget and Finance

Rising K - 5th Grade Reading Camp – Fund 443 Function 5100 Grant 4813 Program 801 - June and
July 2023

● 443-5100128-cost center -0000-4813-801-2 for teachers

● 443-5100158-cost center -0000-4813-801-2 for assistants
Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 10

Page 80 of 248

DRAFT



6th Grade & Junior High Credit Recovery

District Contact

Treasure Pickett 904-336-6918 treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net

Location Feeders Meals Cost

All students will
participate in a virtual
program and will be

assigned to the
appropriate class and

teacher.

Entire School District Meals not
provided Free

6th Grade & Junior High Credit Recovery Calendar

Teachers Teacher Planning, 6/8/23; Postplanning 7/12/23
● Training/preplanning 8:30 a.m. - 11:30 a.m at FIHS Lab 237 (mandatory)
● Virtual post planning to finalize and post grades 8am-11am.

Support
Facilitators

Support Facilitator Planning, 6/8/23
● Face-to-face Training/preplanning (includes 30 minute lunch break)
● 8:30 a.m. - 3:30 p.m at FIHS Lab 237 (mandatory)

Program Dates & times all staff & students
● 6/12/2023- 7/11/2023
● Monday/Wednesday, 2:00 p.m. - 7:00 p.m.
● Tuesday/Thursday, 8:00 a.m. - 1:00 p.m.
● No school on 7/3/2023-7/6/2023

Extended Work Days Support Facilitators
● 7/12/23, Wednesday, 2:00 p.m. - 7:00 p.m.
● 7/13/23, Thursday, 8:00 a.m. - 1:00 p.m.
● 7/17/23, Monday, 8:00 a.m. - 1:00 p.m.

School
Counselor
(504 Support)

School Counselor Planning, 6/8/2023
● Face-to-Face at TTC
● 10:00a.m.-12:00p.m.

School Counselor Virtual Hours
● 6/12/2023 - 7/11/2023
● 10:00a.m.- 2:00p.m.

Extended Time/Days
● 7/12/2023 - 7/13/2023, 9:00 a.m. - 3:00 p.m.
● 7/17/2023, 10:00 a.m.-12:00 p.m.

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 11

Page 81 of 248

DRAFT



Students Operating Dates, 6/12/23 - 7/11/23
Mon & Wed - 2 pm - 7 pm
Tues & Thurs - 8 am - 1 pm
NOTE: Students will have course access on July 3rd-July 6th, but no
teacher contact due to holiday. These dates are NOT included in the 14
days of teacher contact.

Assistants
if applicable

Operating Dates, 6/12/23-7/11/23,
Mon & Wed- 2 pm-7 pm
Tues & Thurs- 8 am-1 pm

Important Dates No School or Teacher Contact on 7/3-7/6.

Student Registration

Eligibility
The secondary summer program is for 6th - 8th grade students who are seeking to recover one or
fewer credits/courses for promotional purposes. Summer grade recovery or course retake will be
provided using an online software program for 14 days, in a virtual learning setting, with instruction
delivered virtually.

If more than 2 half credits are needed, students may retake a failed course through CVA.

6th grade students who have failed one course must attend summer school.  Students in 6th grade
needing to retake a subject will be assigned to one of the virtual teachers.  Elementary schools will
provide parents with the information via a parent letter (see link to a sample letter in the notification
section below).

Notification
The district will identify eligible students by June 6th. Schools will contact students and parents who
qualify via a parent email in order to ensure their attendance.  If the parent/guardian has a concern
about whether or not their child has passed a particular class, the District encourages the
parent/guardian to contact the school prior to the June 12th start date.  Sample parent letters are
provided for: 6th graders, and junior high students.

Registration
School counselors and school administrators will register students who earned a “D” or an “F” for
summer school.  Parents and students will be notified by email that they qualify for summer school.

Curriculum & Instruction

Time Mon & Wed- 2 pm-7pm; Tues & Thurs-8 am-1 pm

Curriculum Florida Standards

Instructional Individualized teacher facilitation, and independent practice

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 12

Page 82 of 248

DRAFT



Methodologies

Materials Edgenuity

Assessment Screening: End of course grades
Progress Monitoring: Online software program data and teacher-developed
records
Outcome Measure: End of course grades for summer school course work

Student Records

Closing Out Summer School Records
The summer school teacher will report the student’s end-of-course grades in a shared Google Doc for
summer school coursework.  School counselors will sort the Google Doc to capture their school’s
students and input grades into Synergy.

6th Grade & Junior Budget and Finance

6th Grade & Junior High Credit Recovery- Fund 443, Grant 4813, and Program 801 - June and July
2023

● 443-5100128-cost center-0000-4813-801-2 for teachers

● 443-5100158-cost center-0000-4813-801-2 for assistants

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 13

Page 83 of 248

DRAFT



High School Credit Recovery

District Contact

Treasure Pickett 904-336-6918 treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net

Location Feeders Meals Cost

Program is Offered Virtually. Entire school
district

Meals not provided Free

High School Credit Recovery Calendar

Teachers Teacher Planning, 6/8/23; 7/12/23
● 6/8-  Planning Meeting for training,  8:30 a.m. - 11:30 a.m. at FIHS Lab

237 (mandatory)
● 7/12- Virtual Final Planning day to finalize and post grades (8 am-11am)

Support
Facilitators

Support Facilitator Planning, 6/8/23
● Face-to-face Training/preplanning (includes 30 minute lunch break)
● 8:30 a.m. - 3:30 p.m at FIHS Lab 237 (mandatory)

Program Dates & times all staff & students
● 6/12/2023- 7/11/2023
● Monday/Wednesday, 2:00 p.m. - 7:00 p.m.
● Tuesday/Thursday, 8:00 a.m. - 1:00 p.m.
● No school on 7/3/2023-7/6/2023

Extended Work Days Support Facilitators
● 7/12/23, Wednesday, 2:00 p.m. - 7:00 p.m.
● 7/13/23, Thursday, 8:00 a.m. - 1:00 p.m.
● 7/17/23, Monday, 8:00 a.m. - 1:00 p.m.

School
Counselor
(504 Support)

School Counselor Planning, 6/8/2023
● Face-to-Face at TTC
● 10:00a.m.-12:00p.m.

School Counselor Virtual Hours
● 6/12/2023 - 7/11/2023
● 10:00a.m.- 2:00p.m.

Extended Time/Days
● 7/12/2023 - 7/13/2023, 9:00 a.m. - 3:00 p.m.
● 7/17/2023, 10:00 a.m.-12:00 p.m.

Students Operating Dates: 6/12/23 - 7/11/23,
Mon & Wed:  2 pm - 7 pm;

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 14

Page 84 of 248

DRAFT



Tues & Thurs: 8am - 1 pm.

NOTE: Students will have course access on July 3rd-July 6th, but no
teacher contact due to holiday. These dates are NOT included in the 14
days of teacher contact.

Assistants
if applicable

Operating Dates: 6/12/23 - 7/11/23, Mon & Wed: 2 pm - 7 pm; Tues & Thurs:
8am - 1 pm.

Important Dates No School/Teacher Contact on 7/3-7/6

Student Registration

Eligibility
The secondary summer program is for 9th-12th grade students who are seeking to recover one or
fewer credits/courses for promotional purposes. Summer grade recovery or course retake will be
provided using an online software program for 14 days, in a virtual learning setting, with instruction
delivered virtually.

Each course recovered through the online software program requires 14 summer school days to
recover, therefore, if two courses need to be recovered, one of these courses will need to be taken
via virtual offerings outside of the summer school day (CVA).  If a student needs an elective to be
promoted or to graduate, the school can approve Clay Virtual as an option to obtain a second
credit/course or an elective.

Notification
The district will identify eligible students by June 6th. Schools will contact students who qualify via a
parent email in order to ensure their attendance.  Sample parent letters are provided for high school
students.  Please edit the fields indicated to reflect the correct information for your school site.

Registration
School  counselors and school administrators will register students who earned a “D” or an “F” for
summer school.  Parents and students will be notified by email that they qualify for summer school.

Curriculum & Instruction

Time Mon & Wed- 2 pm-7 pm; Tues & Thurs- 8 am-1 pm

Curriculum Florida Standards

Instructional
Methodologies

virtual individualized teacher facilitation, and independent practice

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 15

Page 85 of 248

DRAFT



Materials Online Software Program

Assessment Screening: End of course grades
Progress Monitoring: Curriculum software data and teacher-developed
records
Outcome Measure: End of course grades for summer school course work

High School Eligibility

Course Credit Options
Students needing to recover a credit may take one ½ credit or two ½ credits during the 14-day
summer school session.

Student Code of Conduct
The “Student Code of Conduct” policies concerning appropriate technology usages are to be followed
during all summer school offerings.

Student Records

Initiating Summer School Records
Prior to the first day of the program, the district will notify each school with student registration
information. The teacher will be provided with student grades from the 2022-23 school year for each
student.

Closing Out Summer School Records
The summer school teacher will report the end of course grades for summer school coursework,
which will be reflected in the student’s record.

High School Budget and Finance

High School – Credit Recovery - Fund 443 Function 5100 Grant 4813 Program 801 - June and July
2023

● 443-5100128-cost center-0000-4813-801-2 for teachers

● 443-5100158-cost center-0000-4813-801-2 for assistants

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 16

Page 86 of 248

DRAFT



Algebra 1 Credit Recovery for ESE ONLY

District Contact

Renee’ Kemp 904-336-6877 jacqueline.kemp@myoneclay.net

Location Feeders Meals Cost

KHH
OHS
RHS
Transportation will be
provided for all students

Entire school district Meals not provided Free

Algebra 1 Credit Recovery for ESE Only

Teachers 6/08/2023 Report to assigned school for virtual training 8:00 - 9:00 a.m.
Planning at assigned school  9:00 a.m.-3:00 p.m (includes 30 min. lunch break)
Operating Dates, 6/08/2023 - 7/13/2023, 7:45 a.m.-12:15 p.m. (Monday -
Thursday)

Students Operating Dates, 6/12/2023 - 7/13/2023, 8:00 a.m. - 11:30 a.m. (Monday -
Thursday)

Assistants
if applicable

Operating Dates, 6/12/2023 - 7/13/2023, 8:00 a.m. - 11:30 a.m. (Monday -
Thursday)

Important Dates No School on 7/3/2023 - 7/6/2023

Student Registration

Eligibility
ESE Only Algebra 1 Credit Recovery is available for students with disabilities who are seeking to
recover Algebra 1 credit and/or did not successfully pass the Algebra 1 End-of-Course (EOC)
Assessment.

Notification
The IEP team, including the parent, determines the need for extended school year services along
with the location for services.  Once it is determined that a student requires Algebra 1 Credit
Recovery for ESE ONLY, the details of the program will be provided to the parent via the ESE
teacher.

Registration

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 17

Page 87 of 248

DRAFT



Registration will be completed in collaboration with IEP teams at school sites.

Curriculum & Instruction

Time 8:00 a.m.-11:30 a.m.

Curriculum Florida Standards

Instructional
Methodologies

Direct Instruction provided through whole class, small group, independent
practice as well as the use of collaborative online tools in real time

Materials Textbooks & standards-based materials, online tools

Assessment Screening: Most recent Algebra 1 EOC data
Progress Monitoring: Formative Assessment data and teacher-developed
records
Outcome Measure: Algebra 1 EOC Retake data

Student Policies

Attendance
Students are encouraged to attend all days assigned to a course.

Student Code of Conduct
The “Student Code of Conduct” policies are to be followed during all summer school offerings.

Student Records

Initiating Summer School Records
The teacher will be notified of student needs based on each student’s IEP, Algebra 1 EOC scores,
and student grades from the 2022-2023 school year.

Closing Out Summer School Records
The Support Facilitator and/or ESE teacher will update the student’s goals and objectives in the IEP,
and the summer school teacher will report end of course grades for summer school course work,
which will be reflected in the student’s record.

Alg 1 ESE Budget and Finance

High School – Algebra 1 Credit Recovery – for ESE ONLY - Func 5200 Grant 4813 Program 801 -
June and July 2023

● 443-5200128-cost center-0000-4813-801-2 for teachers

● 443-5200158-cost center-0000-4813-801-2 for assistants

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 18

Page 88 of 248

DRAFT



Algebra 1 Boot Camp

District Contact

Treasure Pickett 904-336-6918 Treasure.Pickett@myoneclay.net

Location Feeders Meals Cost

Program will be offered
face-to-face

(if spring scores have not
been released, this camp

may not be applicable)

Students will register
online

Meals not provided Free

Algebra 1 Boot Camp Calendar

Teachers Teacher Planning, 7/13/23; 9:00-12:00
Operating Dates, 3 days-7/17,18,19- 7:45 a.m. - 11:15 a.m.

Students Operating Dates, 3 days- 7/17,18,19- 8:00 a.m. - 11:00 a.m. (Contact time
with Teacher)

Assistants
if applicable

Operating Dates,  7/17, 18, 19-  8:00 a.m. - 11:00 a.m.

Important Dates Retake assessment on 7/20.

Student Registration

Eligibility
Students who did not successfully pass the Algebra 1 End-of-Course (EOC) Assessment will have
the opportunity to attend Algebra 1 Boot Camp. In addition, students who wish to retake the EOC in
order to achieve a higher score to improve their final grade (only a “D” or “F”) may do so.

Notification
Schools will contact all students who qualify via a parent letter and/or a phone call.

Registration
School counselors and school administrators will register students who earned a “D” or an “F” for
summer school.  Parents and students will be notified by email that they qualify for summer school.

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 19

Page 89 of 248

DRAFT



Curriculum & Instruction

Time 8:00 a.m. - 11:00 a.m. Contact Time with Teacher

Curriculum Florida Standards

Instructional
Methodologies

face to face instruction

Materials standards-based materials

Assessment Screening: Most recent Algebra 1 EOC data
Progress Monitoring: Formative Assessment data and teacher-developed
records
Outcome Measure: Algebra 1 EOC Retake data

Student Records

Initiating Summer School Records
Prior to the first day of the program, the school will notify each school with student registration
information. The teacher will be provided with each student’s Algebra 1 EOC scores and student
grades from the 2022-23 school year.

Alg 1 Boot Camp Budget and Finance

High School – Algebra 1 Boot Camp Fund 443 Grant 4813 Program 801 - June and July 2023

● 443-5100128-cost center-0000-4813-801-2 for teachers

● 443-5100158-cost center-0000-4813-801-2 for assistants

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 20

Page 90 of 248

DRAFT



11th- 12th Grade ESOL Summer Language Program

District Contact

Renee Hatcher 904-336-0306 renee.hatcher@myoneclay.net

Location Feeders Meals Cost

Program Offered
Virtually

Entire school district Meals not provided Free

11th - 12th Grade ESOL Summer Reading Program

Teachers Virtual Teacher Planning: 6/8/2023, 8:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.
Operating Dates: 6/12/2023 - 6/22/2023, 7:45 a.m. - 12:15 p.m. (Monday -
Thursday)

Students Operating Dates: 6/12/2023 - 6/22/2023 (Teacher Contact Times) 8:00am -
12:00pm

Student Registration

Eligibility
The ESOL Summer Reading Program is a language program that offers currently enrolled ESOL
students entering 11th or 12th grade, or existing 12th graders who will earn a certificate of completion
in 2023, the opportunity to enhance their English Language proficiency in an effort to pass the
required assessments to earn a high school diploma. English Language Learners (ELLs) who are
new arrivals, non-English speakers, or those students who have not passed the required
assessments will be eligible to attend.

Notification
Schools will provide eligible students with an informational flyer to apply for the program. School
Counselors will ensure that eligible ELL students receive the information. Should a parent need
translation assistance, they can contact the district ESOL office, or Google Translate can be used as
a translation tool for words and phrases.

Registration
School sites will assist parents with registration if needed.

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 21

Page 91 of 248

DRAFT



Curriculum & Instruction

Time 8:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. Contact Time with Teacher

Curriculum Florida Standards

Instructional
Methodologies

Virtual independent practice with a focus on academic vocabulary, rigorous
text, technical writing, and testing strategies

Materials ACT preparation materials

Assessment Screening: Most recent ELA FSA data, ACT data, or SAT data
Progress Monitoring: Formative assessments and teacher-developed
records
Outcome Measure: ELA FSA Retake data, ACT data, or SAT data

Student Records

Initiating Summer School Records
Prior to the first day of the program, the district will notify each school with student registration
information. The teacher will be provided with each student’s most recent FSA ELA, ACT and/or SAT
scores and student grades.

Closing Out Summer School Records
The summer school teacher will report the end of course grades for summer school coursework,
which will be reflected in the student’s record.

ESOL Budget and Finance

11th - 12th Grade ESOL Summer Reading - Fund 443 Grant 4813 Program 801 - June and July 2023

● 443-5100128-cost center-0000-4813-801-2 for teachers

● 443-5100158-cost center-0000-4813-801-2 for assistants

11th- 12th Grade ESOL Summer Language Program Forms

ESOL Informational Flyer (English)
ESOL Informational Flyer (Espanol)
ESOL Informational Flyer (Haitian Creole)

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 22

Page 92 of 248

DRAFT



ESE Extended School Year

District Contact

Renee’ Kemp 904-336-6877 jacqueline.kemp@myoneclay.net

Locations* Feeders Meals Cost

McRae Elementary
Lake Asbury Jr. High
Bannerman Learning

Center

Entire school
district

Meals not provided Free

ESE Extended School Year Calendar*

Teachers ● Planning Days, 6/07/2023 and 6/08/2023, 7:30 a.m. - 12:30 p.m., report to
assigned school

● Lake Asbury Jr. High & Bannerman Learning Center Operating Dates,
6/12/2023 - 7/12/2023 Monday/Wednesday 7:45 a.m. - 12:15 p.m. (Does Not
Include Lunch)

● McRae Elementary School Operating Dates, 6/13/2023 - 7/13/2023
Tuesday/Thursday 7:45 a.m. - 12:15 p.m. (Does Not Include Lunch)

● Direct Instruction provided through whole class, small group, independent
practice as well as the use of collaborative online tools in real time

Students ● Lake Asbury Jr. High & Bannerman Learning Center Operating Dates,
6/12/2023 - 7/12/2023 Monday/Wednesday 8:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. (includes a
15 minute break)

● McRae Elementary School Operating Dates, 6/13/2023 - 7/13/2023
Tuesday/Thursday 8:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m. (includes a 15 minute break)

● Direct Instruction provided through whole class, small group, independent
practice as well as the use of collaborative online tools in real time

Assistants
& Nurses

● Planning Days, 6/08/2023, 7:30 a.m. - 12:30 p.m., report to assigned school
● Lake Asbury Jr. High & Bannerman Learning Center Operating Dates,

6/12/2023 - 7/12/2023 Monday/Wednesday 7:45 a.m. - 12:15 p.m. (Does Not
Include Lunch)

● McRae Elementary School Operating Dates, 6/13/2023 - 7/13/2023
Tuesday/Thursday 7:45 a.m. - 12:15 p.m. (Does Not Include Lunch)

Important
Dates

● No School Monday, July 3, 2023 - Thursday, July 6, 2023

*The ESY calendar is a general framework for services; The IEP team makes the decision regarding
ESY services necessary for the provision of FAPE.

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 23

Page 93 of 248

DRAFT



Student Registration

Extended school year services are available to provide a Free Appropriate Public Education (FAPE)
for students with disabilities and must be considered by the IEP team as part of the provision of a free
appropriate public education. The IEP team determines the need for ESY services and location of
those services. It is important that IEP teams consider a variety of criteria or factors when determining
whether ESY services are necessary in order to ensure the provision of FAPE.  The necessity for
ESY services and/or the duration of those services cannot be limited based on the type or the degree
of disability.  ESY services must be addressed at least annually for each student with a disability. ESY
is NOT any of the following: summer school, child care, respite care, intended to maximize
educational opportunity or potential growth, a longer school day, one-size-fits-all, or provided based
on specific areas of disability, level of service, or type of classroom placement.

Criteria that the IEP team can use to determine whether a student requires ESY services may include
but not be limited to:

● Regression/Recoupment - Will the student regress substantially in a critical life skill related to
his or her IEP goals if ESY services are not provided?

● Critical Point of Instruction - Is the student at a crucial stage in mastering a critical life skill,
when a lapse in services would substantially harm the child’s chances of learning that skill?

● Nature/Severity of Disability - Is the nature or severity of the student’s disability such that the
student will not receive a reasonable level of benefit from his or her educational program
during the regular school year if ESY services are not provided?

● Special Circumstances (e.g., transition from school to work) - Are there extenuating
circumstances that make it unlikely that the student will receive FAPE without ESY services?

If a student is determined to need ESY, the IEP team must also consider the type of services needed.
Some options for services may include direct instruction; take-home instructional materials; itinerant
teacher services, tutorials; services contracted through community or outside agencies; consultation.

Notification
The IEP team, including the parent, determines the need for extended school year services.  Once it
is determined that a student requires extended school year services, the details of the program will be
provided to the parent via the ESE teacher. The ESY Calendar is a framework for services can be
located on page three of this manual.

Registration
Registration will be completed in collaboration with IEP teams at school sites.

Location
Students who require services through ESY programs will be served at a site based on their
geograpical location and needs.   Please refer to the ESY calendar for a general framework of
services.

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 24

Page 94 of 248

DRAFT



Student Policies

Attendance
Students are encouraged to attend each day of the program.
Student Code of Conduct
The “Student Code of Conduct” policies are to be followed during all summer school offerings.

Student Records

Initiating Summer School Records
The ESY teacher will be notified of student needs based on each student’s IEP.

Closing Out Summer School Records
The ESY Teacher will update the student’s goals and objectives on the IEP, and complete the
Summary of Progress document, which can be found in the ESY Task Instructions.

ESE Budget and Finance

ESE Summer School/Extended School Year – Fund 443 Function 5200 Grant 4813 Program 801 -
June and July 2023

● ESE Summer Teachers 443-5200128-cost center-0000-4813-801-2

● ESE Summer PTs, OTs 443-5200138-cost center-0000-4813-801-2

● ESE Summer Assistants 443-5200158-cost center-0000-4813-801-2

● ESE Summer BRT/BLC 443-5200128-cost center-0000-4813-801-2

● ESE Summer Nurses 443-6100168-cost center-0000-4813-801-2

ESE Extended School Year Calendar

Extended School Year (ESY) Calendar

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 25

Page 95 of 248

DRAFT



Instructional and Support Application & Hiring

Instructional

The following are the instructional qualifications for summer school:

ARTICLE XIV
PROFESSIONAL QUALIFICATIONS AND ASSIGNMENTS

C.  All instructional employment in summer school shall be filled according to the following criteria:

1.       All teachers who apply shall apply for summer school classroom positions which are
open at centers affecting their school.  Requests to teach summer school shall be
presented to the district Human Resources Division.

2.        a. Only teachers under contract in the county for the year preceding or for the next
year will be considered for summer school employment.

b. No teacher receiving an unsatisfactory evaluation during the regular school year
will be eligible for summer school employment.

3. Assignments to such positions in each summer school center shall be made according
to the following ranked criteria:

a. Proper certification and qualifications are held by the employee.
b. Employee has taught one (1) year in the subject applied for within the past three

(3) years or is assigned to teach the subject for the next school year.
c. Uninterrupted seniority in the district.

4. During the first three days of summer school, the following ranked criteria shall be used
should there be a need to reduce the number of teachers in a specific subject area
within the school, or, for exceptional education teachers on a district-wide basis:

a. Teachers who do not hold proper certification or qualifications.
b. Teachers who have not taught one (1) year in the subject within the past three (3)

years or is not assigned to teach the subject for the next school year.
c. Teachers with least uninterrupted district seniority.

5. Summer school teachers shall not be required to teach less than two (2) hours per day.

Notes:

● Positions are based on open enrollment.  Once positions are determined, the positions will be
subject to minimum required enrollment.

● If a teacher needs to be absent, Principals should work with their faculty and attempt to find a
substitute.  The absent teacher will not receive pay for the hours missed and the teacher who
took their place can be paid.

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 26

Page 96 of 248

DRAFT



● If a program has additional requirements, these requirements will be listed with the position
posting.

Additional Requirements for VPK:

● Under course code number 5100590 VPK Summer Program, VPK summer school
instructional personnel must hold a valid Florida certificate with a bachelor degree or higher
in one of the following: Early Childhood Education, Pre-Kindergarten or Primary Education,
Preschool Education, Family and Consumer Science Education, Elementary Education.

● It is required that instructional personnel have the following training listed on their DCF
transcripts: Implementing the Florida Standards in Preschool Classrooms: 3 Years Old to
Kindergarten (VFSP) and 15 Hours of Emergent Literacy training in alignment with House
Bill (HB) 419 and HB 7011). The training must be completed prior to the determined
summer school VPK placements: Training and Registry Login.

● Job sharing will be allowed for the Summer Pre-Kindergarten Program as long as both
teachers and the administrator agree to work a Summer A (May 31, 2023 – June 30, 2023)
and Summer B (July 1, 2023 – July 31, 2023) prior to the first day of the program.

Additional Requirements for Summer Reading Camp

Summer Reading Camp teachers must be either Reading Endorsed or Reading Certified and rated
highly effective.

Support

Placement of support personnel in summer school positions when allocated shall be made in the best
interest of the student in accordance with the IEP, current job title, consideration of the mix of the
exceptionalities in the summer school setting, employee’s familiarity with the specific group of
students, ESE experience and training, and all else being equal, seniority. The primary consideration
shall be the goal of providing optimal staffing for students within the summer school center.

Table of Contents 2023 Summer Programs Manual 27

Page 97 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C7 - K-12 Academic Services Out of State and Overnight Student Travel

Page 98 of 248

DRAFT



Description
The School Board recognizes that field trips, when used for teaching and learning integral to the curriculum, are an educationally
sound and important ingredient in the instructional program of the schools. Properly planned and executed field trips supplement
and enrich classroom instruction by providing learning experiences that will enhance mastery of the curriculum standards of the
State of Florida. A field trip is defined as any planned, student-travel activity which is approved as part of the district's
educational program and is under the direct supervision and control of an instructional staff member or any advisor as designated
by the Superintendent.
                                                                                                  Field Trips Details

School Date Destination Group Purpose

Lake Asbury
Junior High

3/1 - 3/2/23
FFA LTC
Haines City,
FL

FFA Florida FFA Middle School Conference

Lake Asbury
Junior High

3/24 -
3/27/23

Orlando, FL FCCLA FCCLA Competition

Oakleaf Junior
High

3/1 - 3/2/23
Haines City,
FL

FFA Florida FFA Middle School Conference

Fleming Island
High

3/4/23 Douglas, GA
NJROTC
Drill Team

Area 12 Drill Competition

Fleming Island
High

3/24 -
3/25/23

McDonough,
GA

NJROTC
Drone
Team

Drone Team event

Fleming Island
High

Tenative
dates: 4/11
- 4/16/24

New York,
New York

Band
Opportunities to perform in a world class hall hear
concerts by the best musicians in the country.

Middleburg High
2/17 -
2/18/23

Tampa, FL
Girls
Weightliftin
g

Team qualified for State Championship

Middleburg High 3/2 - 3/3/23
Haines City,
FL

FFA FFA Leadership Conference

Middleburg High 3/3 - 3/5/23 Orlando, FL
Prostart
Culinary
Students

Prostart competition

Middleburg High
3/20 -
3/22/23

Haines City,
FL

FFA
Floriculture
, Nursery
and
Landscape
teams

FFA competition

Middleburg High
3/29 -
4/2/23

Pensacola,
FL

NJROTC Navy National Drill competition

Middleburg High
3/30 -
4/2/23

Pensacola,
FL 

NJROTC
Drill Team

Drill competition

Middleburg High
4/28 -
4/30/23

Colts Neck,
NJ

NJROTC
Academic
Team

Academic competition - Brain Brawl Nationals

Oakleaf High 
1/20 -
1/22/23

Gainesville,
FL

Model
United
Nations

Gator MUN Conference

Oakleaf High 3/2 - 3/3/23
Haines City,
FL

FFA FFA Competition

Orange Park
High

3/3 - 3/4/23 Douglas, GA NJROTC Drill championship

Ridgeview High 3/3 - 3/4/23 Tifton, GA Baseball Baseball competition

Page 99 of 248

DRAFT



team

Gap Analysis
Field trips provide students with a window to the real world that they don't get in the classroom, and they can help students
understand real-world applications to abstract concepts.

Previous Outcomes
All out of county activity trips are selected, planned, evaluated, and approved or rejected in conformity with written district
policy.

Expected Outcomes
It is important to recognize that learning outcomes from field trips can range from cognitive to affective outcomes. Exposing
students to new experiences and can increase interest and engagement in academics regardless of prior interests.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure that every classroom provides a quality and rigorous instructional experience in order to elevate student outcomes.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board approve out of county student travel.   

Contact
Roger Dailey, Assistant Superintendent of Curriculum & Instruction; roger.dailey@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6904
Treasure Pickett, Director of K-12 Academic Services; treasure.pickett@myoneclay.net; 904-336-6918

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

March 2023 Student Travel.pdf

Page 100 of 248

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/march-2023-student-travel.pdf


Page 101 of 248

DRAFT



Page 102 of 248

DRAFT



Page 103 of 248

DRAFT



Page 104 of 248

DRAFT



Page 105 of 248

DRAFT



Page 106 of 248

DRAFT



Page 107 of 248

DRAFT



Page 108 of 248

DRAFT



Page 109 of 248

DRAFT



Page 110 of 248

DRAFT



Page 111 of 248

DRAFT



Page 112 of 248

DRAFT



Page 113 of 248

DRAFT



Page 114 of 248

DRAFT



Page 115 of 248

DRAFT



Page 116 of 248

DRAFT



Page 117 of 248

DRAFT



Page 118 of 248

DRAFT



Page 119 of 248

DRAFT



Page 120 of 248

DRAFT



Page 121 of 248

DRAFT



Page 122 of 248

DRAFT



Page 123 of 248

DRAFT



Page 124 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C8 - Proclamation #23-10 to Establish School Social Work Week

Description
Proclamation of School Social Work Week March 5-11, 2023

Gap Analysis
Recognizes the contributions of school social workers in supporting the academic success of our students.

Previous Outcomes
The citizens of Clay County recognized and appreciated the contributions of school social workers.

Expected Outcomes
The citizens of Clay County will recognize and further support the work of school social workers and their provision of services
that assist students and families in overcoming barriers to academic success.

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact
Heather McDonald 904-336-6900 heather.mcdonald@myoneclay.net; Laura Fogarty 904-336-6513

Financial Impact

Review Comments

Attachments

Proclamation #23-10_School Social Work Week.pdf

Page 125 of 248

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/proclamation-23-10_school-social-work-week.pdf


SCHOOL BOARD OF CLAY COUNTY, FLORIDA 
PROCLAMATION # 23-10 

 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, school social workers in Clay County serve as vital members of the educational team, 
playing a central role in creating a positive environment at schools; and 
 
WHEREAS, school social workers in Clay County are especially skilled in identifying and providing 
services to students who face serious challenges to school success, including poverty, disability, 
discrimination, abuse, addiction, bullying, loss of a loved one, and other barriers to learning; and 
 
WHEREAS, school districts and local educational agencies should continue to work with school social 
workers to adderess students’ social, emotional, physical, mental health, and environmental needs so 
that students may achieve academic success. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the School Board of Clay County, Florida, does hereby 
recognize the importance and hard work of school social workers, and extend greetings and best 
wishes to all observing Marcy 5-11, 2023 as School Social Work Week. 
 
Duly adopted and approved by the School Board of Clay County, Florida, this 2nd day of March, 
2023. 
        
 
 
ATTEST:       
 
             
_________________________________         ____________________________________ 
David S. Broskie                        Ashley Gilhousen, School Board Chair 
Superintendent of Schools         
Clay County, Florida       
      
 
 
 
 
 

Page 126 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C9 - Proposed Allocation Changes for 2022-2023

Description

Gap Analysis

Previous Outcomes

Expected Outcomes

Strategic Plan Goal

Recommendation

Contact

Financial Impact

Review Comments

Attachments

22 23 Allocation Summary - Mar 2, 2023.pdf

Page 127 of 248

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/22-23-allocation-summary-mar-2-2023_1.pdf


PROPOSED CHANGES TO STAFF ALLOCATIONS   

2022-2023 SUMMARY 

Board Meeting, March 2, 2023

School Add Delete Allocation Comment Salary Benefits Total Cost

2022-2023 ACTIONS

General Funds

PES - 0471 1.0 Speech Clinician Program Needs ($52,250) ($17,431) ($69,681)

ESE - 9005 1.0 Speech Clinician Program Needs $52,250 $17,431 $69,681

SPS - 0671 1.0 Principal New School Needs $93,269 $31,115 $124,384

SPS - 0671 1.0 Principal's Secretary New School Needs $31,650 $10,558 $42,208

TOTAL: $124,919 $41,673 $166,592

Pending Board Approval 03/02/2023

Page 128 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C10 - Monthly Financial Reports for January, 2023

Description
The Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008, are submitted for the use and consideration of the Board
for the month ending January 31, 2023.
 

Gap Analysis
The Monthly Financial Reports show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements.
 

Previous Outcomes
It has been a past (normal) practice to provide Monthly Financial Reports, in accordance with SBE Rule 6A-1.008.
 

Expected Outcomes
The Monthly Financial Reports are provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's finances.
 

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2:  Strategy 2.4:  Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
That the Clay County School Board accept for use and consideration the Superintendent's Monthly Financial Reports for January,
2023.
 

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent of Business Affairs, (904) 336-6721, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
The Monthly Financial Reports reflect the year-to-date results of operations.

Review Comments

Attachments

January 2023 Monthly Board Financial Report.pdf

January 2023 Monthly Board Property Report.pdf

Contracts $50,000-$100,000 Signed by Superintendent.pdf

Page 129 of 248

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/january-2023-monthly-board-financial-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/january-2023-monthly-board-property-report.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/contracts-50000-100000-signed-by-superintendent_2.pdf


Page 130 of 248

DRAFT



Page 131 of 248

DRAFT



Page 132 of 248

DRAFT



Page 133 of 248

DRAFT



Page 134 of 248

DRAFT



Page 135 of 248

DRAFT



Page 136 of 248

DRAFT



Page 137 of 248

DRAFT



Page 138 of 248

DRAFT



Page 139 of 248

DRAFT



Page 140 of 248

DRAFT



Page 141 of 248

DRAFT



Page 142 of 248

DRAFT



Page 143 of 248

DRAFT



Page 144 of 248

DRAFT



Page 145 of 248

DRAFT



Page 146 of 248

DRAFT



Page 147 of 248

DRAFT



Page 148 of 248

DRAFT



23
00

01
M

 S
an

de
rs

90
05

$5
2,

00
0.

00
P2

30
25

43
Fi

rs
t C

oa
st

 M
ob

ile
 A

ud
io

lo
gy

23
00

05
M

 S
an

de
rs

90
05

$9
0,

00
0.

00
P2

30
25

30
Fa

m
ily

 S
er

vi
ce

s &
 R

es
ou

rc
e 

Ce
nt

er

23
00

21
H 

Te
to

90
06

$5
6,

70
0.

00
P2

30
02

1
Q

ua
ve

rE
d 

 

23
00

42
M

 S
an

de
rs

90
05

$9
0,

00
0.

00
Pe

nd
in

g 
PO

DN
A 

Co
m

pr
eh

en
siv

e 
Th

er
ap

y 
Se

rv
ice

s, 
LL

C

23
00

27
S 

Ra
uc

ci
90

24
$7

5,
00

0.
00

P2
30

46
18

No
rt

h 
Fl

or
id

a 
Bu

ild
in

g 
Co

de
 S

vc
s

23
00

58
R 

W
id

do
w

so
n

91
06

$3
3,

00
0

To
ta

l $
43

,5
00

 +
 $

33
,0

00
 =

 $
76

,5
00

P2
30

53
55

Im
ag

in
e 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 LL
C 

- A
dd

en
du

m
 to

  2
20

12
7 

$4
3,

50
0

23
00

99
D 

Br
os

ki
e

90
16

$6
0,

00
0.

00
P2

30
68

98
Th

e 
So

ut
he

rn
 G

ro
up

 (L
ob

by
in

g)

$5
0,
00
0
-$
10
0,
00
0
C
on
tra
ct
s
"S
ig
ne
d"

by
Su

pe
rin
te
nd
en
tf
or
BA

D
M
on
th
ly
BO

AR
D
Fi
na
nc
ia
lR

ep
or
t

Page 149 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C11 - Budget Amendment Report for January 31, 2023

Description
Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006 requires that the School Board approve amendments to the
district school budget whenever the function and object amounts in the accounts prescribed by the State Board form are changed
from the original budget approved by the School Board.  The Budget Amendments are procedurally necessary to update our
budget to reflect changes as outlined in the attached statements.

Gap Analysis
The monthly budget amendment show compliance to the district's amended budget as of the month end reported and meet State
and School Board financial reporting requirements. 

Previous Outcomes
Reported as per Florida State Board of Education Administrative Rule 6A-1.006. 

Expected Outcomes
The monthly budget amendment is provided to meet the stewardship responsibilities of the district for reporting and
accountability of the district's budget.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal: 2: Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Approval of the Budget Amendments for January 31, 2023, as presented.

Contact
Dr. Susan M. Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs

Financial Impact
See attached statements for a complete analysis of the financial impact.

Review Comments

Attachments

Budget Amendment January 2022.pdf

Page 150 of 248

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/budget-amendment-january-2022_2.pdf


Page 151 of 248

DRAFT



Page 152 of 248

DRAFT



Page 153 of 248

DRAFT



Page 154 of 248

DRAFT



Page 155 of 248

DRAFT



Page 156 of 248

DRAFT



Page 157 of 248

DRAFT



Page 158 of 248

DRAFT



Page 159 of 248

DRAFT



Page 160 of 248

DRAFT



Page 161 of 248

DRAFT



Page 162 of 248

DRAFT



Page 163 of 248

DRAFT



Page 164 of 248

DRAFT



Page 165 of 248

DRAFT



Page 166 of 248

DRAFT



Page 167 of 248

DRAFT



Page 168 of 248

DRAFT



Page 169 of 248

DRAFT



Page 170 of 248

DRAFT



Page 171 of 248

DRAFT



Page 172 of 248

DRAFT



Page 173 of 248

DRAFT



Page 174 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C12 - Approval of the 2023-2024 Payroll Calendars

Description
The adopted payroll calendar serves as the instrument for the reporting of employees for payroll purposes.  

Gap Analysis
Section V (5.04) of the School Board of Clay County rules states that the School Board shall annually adopt a payroll calendar
for pay periods and paydays for the employees of the Board.  Approval of a calendar is necessary to be in compliance with this
rule.

Previous Outcomes
All proposed 2023-2024 payroll calendars are developed based on approved work calendars which were adopted on January 5,
2023.

Expected Outcomes
Proposed calendars should be approved by the school board.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective, equitable, and efficient use of resources.

Recommendation
Approve the 2023-2024 payroll calendars.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent of Business Affairs, ext. 66721, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net, Michelle Larson,
Supervisor of Payroll, michelle.larson@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact

Review Comments

Attachments

23-24 Calendar - 9 Month Employees ALL.pdf

23-24 Calendar - 10 Mo 196 & 197 Day Employees.pdf

23-24 Calendar - 11 Month 216 Day Employees.pdf

23-24 Calendar - 12 month 260 Day Employees.pdf

23-24 Payroll Master Calendar Dates.pdf

23-24 Payroll Employee Work Days.pdf

2023 Summer Payroll Calendar.pdf

Page 175 of 248

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/23-24-calendar-9-month-employees-all.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/23-24-calendar-10-mo-196-197-day-employees.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/23-24-calendar-11-month-216-day-employees.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/23-24-calendar-12-month-260-day-employees.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/23-24-payroll-master-calendar-dates.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/23-24-payroll-employee-work-days.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/2023-summer-payroll-calendar.pdf


CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOLS
2023 - 2024 PAYROLL CALENDAR

9 MONTH EMPLOYEES

# Checks Remaining 
Checks PAY DATE Pay Period BEGIN DATE END DATE

8/8/23 - 5/30/24 8/10/23 - 5/30/24 8/9/23 - 5/30/24 8/9/23 - 5/29/24

PAID HOLIDAY NON WORK NON PAID DAY(S) ADDITIONAL NOTES
9 month 

Classroom 
Assistants, ESE 

Assistants, 
Secondary ISS

9 month 
Transportation 

Bus Drivers, Bus 
Monitors, Fuel 

Attendants

9 month 
Elementary Cafe 
Assistant, Van 

Drivers

9 month JR/SR 
High Cafe 

Assistant, Van 
Drivers

SUMMER/CLOSEOUT 07/07/23 2301122 06/01/23 06/30/23
1 21 08/31/23 2301160 07/30/23 08/19/23 9 7 8 8
2 20 09/15/23 2301170 08/20/23 09/02/23 10 10 10 10 Insurance Deductions Begin
3 19 09/29/23 2301180 09/03/23 09/16/23 10 10 10 10 Labor Day 9/4
4 18 10/13/23 2301190 09/17/23 09/30/23 10 10 10 10
5 17 10/31/23 2301200 10/01/23 10/21/23 14 14 14 14 Teacher Planning 10/16
6 16 11/15/23 2301210 10/22/23 11/04/23 10 10 9 10 Early Release 10/31 Elem Cafe Assistants & Van Drivers
7 15 11/30/23 2301220 11/05/23 11/18/23 10 10 10 10 Veteran's Day 11/10
8 14 12/15/23 2301230 11/19/23 12/02/23 6 6 6 6 Thanksgiving 11/23 Thanksgiving 11/20-22,11/24
9 13 12/29/23 2301240 12/03/23 12/16/23 10 10 10 10

10 12 01/12/24 2401010 12/17/23 12/31/23 4 4 3 3 Christmas 12/25 Early Release 12/20 All Cafe Assistants & Van Drivers 
Christmas 12/21-22, 12/26-29

11 11 01/31/24 2401020 01/01/24 01/20/24 11 11 11 11 New Year's  1/1
MLK Day 1/15

New Year's 1/2-1/4
Planning Day 1/5

12 10 02/15/24 2401030 01/21/24 02/03/24 10 10 10 10
13 9 02/29/24 2401040 02/04/24 02/17/24 10 10 10 10
14 8 03/15/24 2401050 02/18/24 03/02/24 9 9 9 9 President's Day 2/19
15 7 03/28/23 2401060 03/03/24 03/16/24 4 4 4 4 3/8 Planning Day, Spring Break 3/11 -15
16 6 04/15/24 2401070 03/17/24 04/06/24 14 14 14 14 Good Friday, 3/29
17 5 04/30/24 2401080 04/07/24 04/20/24 9 9 9 9 April 12, Fair Day
18 4 05/15/24 2401090 04/21/24 05/04/24 10 10 10 10
19 3 05/31/24 2401100 05/05/24 05/18/24 10 10 10 10
20 2 06/14/24 2401110 05/19/24 05/25/24 5 5 5 5

21 1 06/28/24 2401120 05/26/24 06/30/24 3 3 3 2 Memorial Day 5/27 Insurance Deductions End

9 month Adult Temporary/Miscellaeous/Student labor personnel are paid 
based on this payroll calendar

188 186 185 185 Total Work Days

Page 176 of 248

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOLS
2023 - 2024 PAYROLL CALENDAR

10 MONTH EMPLOYEES

# Checks Remaining 
Checks PAY DATE Pay Period BEGIN DATE END DATE

8/2/23 - 5/31/24 8/2/23- 5/31/24
PAID HOLIDAY NON WORK NON PAID DAY(S) ADDITIONAL NOTES10 month Cafe 

Manager
10 month 

Instructional, 
Support

SUMMER/CLOSEOUT 07/07/22 2301122 06/01/23 06/30/23 N/A N/A
1 21 08/31/23 2301160 07/30/23 08/19/23 13 13
2 20 09/15/23 2301170 08/20/23 09/02/23 10 10 Insurance Deductions Begin
3 19 09/29/23 2301180 09/03/23 09/16/23 10 10 Labor Day 9/4
4 18 10/13/23 2301190 09/17/23 09/30/23 10 10
5 17 10/31/23 2301200 10/01/23 10/21/2023 15 15
6 16 11/15/23 2301210 10/22/23 11/04/23 10 10
7 15 11/30/23 2301220 11/05/23 11/18/23 10 10 Veteran's Day 11/10
8 14 12/15/23 2301230 11/19/23 12/02/23 6 6 Thanksgiving 11/23 Thanksgiving 11/20-22,11/24

9 13 12/29/23 2301240 12/03/23 12/16/23 10 10
10 12 01/12/24 2401010 12/17/23 12/31/23 4 4 Christmas 12/25 Christmas 12/21-22, 12/26-29

11 11 01/31/24 2401020 01/01/24 01/20/24 12 12
New Year's  1/1
MLK Day 1/15 New Year's 1/2-1/4

12 10 02/15/24 2401030 01/21/24 02/03/24 10 10
13 9 02/29/24 2401040 02/04/24 02/17/24 10 10
14 8 03/15/24 2401050 02/18/24 03/02/24 9 9 President's Day 2/19
15 7 03/28/23 2401060 03/03/24 03/16/24 5 5 Spring Break 3/11 -15

16 6 04/15/24 2401070 03/17/24 04/06/24 14 14 Good Friday 3/29

17 5 04/30/24 2401080 04/07/24 04/20/24 10 9
 Fair Day 4/12 Inst & Support only
4/12 is a work day for Cafe Mgrs

18 4 05/15/24 2401090 04/21/24 05/04/24 10 10
19 3 05/31/24 2401100 05/05/24 05/18/24 10 10

22-24 05/31/24 (3) Instructional Summer Checks
20 2 06/14/24 2401110 05/19/24 05/25/24 5 5
21 1 06/28/24 2401120 05/26/24 05/30/23 4 4 Memorial Day 5/27 Insurance Deductions End

10 month instructional personnel are paid 1/24 of their calculated contract each pay date 197 196 TOTAL WORK DAYS
10 month Nurse Subs and Adult Temporary/Miscellaeous labor are paid based on this payroll calendar

Page 177 of 248

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOLS
2023 - 2024 PAYROLL CALENDAR

11 MONTH EMPLOYEES

# Checks Remaining 
Checks PAY DATE Pay Period BEGIN DATE END DATE

7/17/23-6/11/24

PAID HOLIDAY NON WORK NON PAID DAY(S) ADDITIONAL NOTES11 month 
Administrators, 
Instructional, 

Support
SUMMER/CLOSEOUT 07/07/23 2301122 06/01/23 06/30/23 N/A
1 24 08/15/23 2301150 07/16/23 07/29/23 10
2 23 08/31/23 2301160 07/30/23 08/19/23 15
3 22 09/15/23 2301170 08/20/23 09/02/23 10 Insurance Deductions Begin
4 21 09/29/23 2301180 09/03/23 09/16/23 10 Labor Day 9/4
5 20 10/13/23 2301190 09/17/23 09/30/23 10
6 19 10/31/23 2301200 10/01/23 10/21/2023 15
7 18 11/15/23 2301210 10/22/23 11/04/23 10
8 17 11/30/23 2301220 11/05/23 11/18/23 10 Veteran's Day 11/10
9 16 12/15/23 2301230 11/19/23 12/02/23 6 Thanksgiving 11/23 Thanksgiving 11/20-22,11/24

10 15 12/29/23 2301240 12/03/23 12/16/23 10
11 14 01/12/24 2401010 12/17/23 12/31/23 4 Christmas 12/25 Christmas 12/21-22, 12/26-29

12 13 01/31/24 2401020 01/01/24 01/20/24 12
New Year's  1/1
1/15 MLK Day New Year's 1/2-1/4

13 12 02/15/24 2401030 01/21/24 02/03/24 10
14 11 02/29/24 2401040 02/04/24 02/17/24 10
15 10 03/15/24 2401050 02/18/24 03/02/24 9 President's Day 2/19
16 9 03/28/23 2401060 03/03/24 03/16/24 5 Spring Break 3/11 -15
17 8 04/15/24 2401070 03/17/24 04/06/24 15 Good Friday 3/29
18 7 04/30/24 2401080 04/07/24 04/20/24 9 Fair Day 4/12
19 6 05/15/24 2401090 04/21/24 05/04/24 10
20 5 05/31/24 2401100 05/05/24 05/18/24 10
21 4 06/14/24 2401110 05/19/24 05/25/24 5

22 3 06/28/24 2401120 05/26/24 6/12/23 11 Memorial Day 5/27
Insurance Deductions End

6/3 (4) Day work week begins
23-24 1-2 06/28/24 (2) Instructional Summer Checks

216 TOTAL WORK DAYS
11 month Adult Temporary/Miscellanous labor personnel are paid based on this payroll calendar

Page 178 of 248

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOLS
2023 - 2024 PAYROLL CALENDAR

12 MONTH EMPLOYEES

# Checks Remaining 
Checks PAY DATE Pay Period BEGIN DATE END DATE

7/1/23 - 6/30/24

PAID HOLIDAY NON WORK NON 
PAID DAY(S) ADDITIONAL NOTES12 month 

Administrators, 
Instructional, Support

SUMMER/CLOSEOUT 07/07/23 2301122 06/01/23 06/30/23 N/A
1 24 07/14/23 2301130 07/01/23 07/08/23 5 Independence Day 7/4
2 23 07/31/23 2301140 07/09/23 07/15/23 5
3 22 08/15/23 2301150 07/16/23 07/29/23 10
4 21 08/31/23 2301160 07/30/23 08/19/23 15
5 20 09/15/23 2301170 08/20/23 09/02/23 10 Insurance Deductions Begin
6 19 09/29/23 2301180 09/03/23 09/16/23 10 Labor Day 9/4
7 18 10/13/23 2301190 09/17/23 09/30/23 10
8 17 10/31/23 2301200 10/01/23 10/21/2023 15
9 16 11/15/23 2301210 10/22/23 11/04/23 10

10 15 11/30/23 2301220 11/05/23 11/18/23 10 Veteran's Day 11/10
11 14 12/15/23 2301230 11/19/23 12/02/23 10 Thanksgiving 11/23 & 11/24
12 13 12/29/23 2301240 12/03/23 12/16/23 10
13 12 01/12/24 2401010 12/17/23 12/31/23 10 Christmas 12/25

14 11 01/31/24 2401020 01/01/24 01/20/24 15 New Year's 1/1
MLK Day 1/15

15 10 02/15/24 2401030 01/21/24 02/03/24 10
16 9 02/29/24 2401040 02/04/24 02/17/24 10
17 8 03/15/24 2401050 02/18/24 03/02/24 10
18 7 03/28/23 2401060 03/03/24 03/16/24 10
19 6 04/15/24 2401070 03/17/24 04/06/24 15 Good Friday 3/29
20 5 04/30/24 2401080 04/07/24 04/20/24 10
21 4 05/15/24 2401090 04/21/24 05/04/24 10
22 3 05/31/24 2401100 05/05/24 05/18/24 10
23 2 06/14/24 2401110 05/19/24 05/25/24 5

24 1 06/28/24 2401120 05/26/24 06/30/24 25 Memorial Day 5/27
Insurance Deductions End

6/3 (4) Day work week begins
12 Month personnel receive 1/24 of their calculated contract pay each pay date 260 TOTAL WORK DAYS
12 month Adult Temporary/Miscellanous Labor personnel are paid based on this payroll calendar

Page 179 of 248

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOLS
2023 - 2024 PAYROLL CALENDAR

PAYROLL MASTER CALENDAR DATES

# Checks Remaining 
Checks PAY DATE PAY PERIOD BEGIN DATE END DATE

EMPLOYEE 
SUBMIT 

TIMESHEET

ADMINISTRATORS 
MUST SUBMIT 

TIMECARDS AND 
CERTIFICATIONS BY 

4:00PM

PAYROLL 
MERGE 9:

00AM
HR FINAL KEY 

3:00PM
BN FINAL KEY 

4:00PM
PAYROLL 
PROCESS

PAYROLL / 
VENDOR 
CHECKS 
ISSUED

SUMMER/CLOSEOUT 07/07/23 2301122 06/01/23 06/30/23 06/27/23 06/28/23 06/29/23 06/28/23 07/05/23 07/06/23

1 24 07/14/23 2301130 07/01/23 07/08/23 07/06/23 07/06/23 07/10/23 07/06/23 07/12/23 07/13/23
2 23 07/31/23 2301140 07/09/23 07/15/23 07/13/23 07/18/23 07/20/23 07/19/23 07/26/23 07/27/23
3 22 08/15/23 2301150 07/16/23 07/29/23 07/28/23 08/01/23 08/07/23 08/03/23 08/10/23 08/11/23
4 21 08/31/23 2301160 07/30/23 08/19/23 08/18/23 08/22/23 08/25/23 08/22/23 08/28/23 08/29/23
5 20 09/15/23 2301170 08/20/23 09/02/23 09/01/23 09/05/23 09/11/23 09/05/23 09/07/23 09/12/23 09/13/23
6 19 09/29/23 2301180 09/03/23 09/16/23 09/15/23 09/19/23 09/21/23 09/19/23 09/21/23 09/26/23 09/27/23
7 18 10/13/23 2301190 09/17/23 09/30/23 09/29/23 10/03/23 10/06/23 10/03/23 10/05/23 10/10/23 10/11/23
8 17 10/31/23 2301200 10/01/23 10/21/2023 10/20/23 10/20/23 10/23/23 10/20/23 10/24/23 10/26/23 10/27/23
9 16 11/15/23 2301210 10/22/23 11/04/23 11/03/23 11/06/23 11/07/23 11/06/23 11/07/23 11/09/23 11/13/23

10 15 11/30/23 2301220 11/05/23 11/18/23 11/17/23 11/17/23 11/21/23 11/17/23 11/21/23 11/27/23 11/30/23
11 14 12/15/23 2301230 11/19/23 12/02/23 12/01/23 12/05/23 12/06/23 12/05/23 12/07/23 12/12/23 12/13/23
12 13 12/29/23 2301240 12/03/23 12/16/23 12/15/23 12/15/23 12/19/23 12/15/23 12/19/23 12/20/23 12/21/23
13 12 01/12/24 2401010 12/17/23 12/31/23 01/02/24 01/03/24 01/04/24 01/03/24 01/05/24 01/09/24 01/10/24
14 11 01/31/24 2401020 01/01/24 01/20/24 01/19/24 01/22/24 01/23/24 01/22/24 01/24/24 01/26/24 01/29/24
15 10 02/15/24 2401030 01/21/24 02/03/24 02/02/24 02/05/24 02/07/24 02/05/24 02/07/24 02/12/24 02/13/24
16 9 02/29/24 2401040 02/04/24 02/17/24 02/16/24 02/20/24 02/22/24 02/20/24 02/22/24 02/26/24 02/27/24
17 8 03/15/24 2401050 02/18/24 03/02/24 03/01/24 03/05/24 03/07/24 03/05/24 03/07/24 03/12/24 03/13/24
18 7 03/28/23 2401060 03/03/24 03/16/24 03/15/24 03/19/24 03/21/24 03/19/24 03/21/24 03/25/24 03/26/24
19 6 04/15/24 2401070 03/17/24 04/06/24 04/05/24 04/08/24 04/09/24 04/08/24 04/09/24 04/10/24 04/11/24
20 5 04/30/24 2401080 04/07/24 04/20/24 04/19/24 04/22/24 04/23/24 04/22/24 04/23/24 04/25/24 04/26/24
21 4 05/15/24 2401090 04/21/24 05/04/24 05/03/24 05/06/24 05/07/24 05/06/24 05/08/24 05/10/24 05/13/24
22 3 05/31/24 2401100 05/05/24 05/18/24 05/17/24 05/21/24 05/22/24 05/21/24 05/23/24 05/28/24 05/29/24

05/31/24 10 month (3) INST Summer Checks / 10 month FYCA (2) INST Summer checks 05/29/24
23 2 06/14/24 2401110 05/19/24 05/25/24 05/24/24 05/28/24 06/04/24 05/28/24 06/04/24 06/11/24 06/12/24
24 1 06/28/24 2401120 05/26/24 06/30/24 last work day** 06/20/24 06/21/24 06/20/24 06/21/24 06/25/24 06/26/24

06/28/24 11  month (2) INST Summer Checks 06/26/24

Page 180 of 248

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOLS
2023 - 2024 PAYROLL CALENDAR

EMPLOYEE WORK DAYS

# Checks Remaining 
Checks PAY DATE Pay Period BEGIN DATE END DATE

7/1/23 - 6/30/24 7/17/23-6/11/24 8/2/23 - 5/31/24 8/2/23- 5/31/24 8/8/23 - 5/30/24 8/10/23 - 5/30/24 8/9/23 - 5/30/24 8/9/23 - 5/29/24

12 month 
Administrators, 
Instructional, 

Support

11 month 
Administrators, 
Instructional, 

Support

10 month Cafe 
Manager

10 month 
Instructional, 

Support

9 month 
Classroom 

Assistants, ESE 
Assistants, 

Guardians, ISS 
Assistants

9 month 
Transportation 

Bus Drivers, Bus 
Monitors, Fuel 

Attendants

9 month 
Elementary Cafe 
Assistant, Van 

Drivers

9 month JR/SR 
High Cafe 

Assistant, Van 
Drivers

SUMMER/CLOSEOUT 07/07/23 2301122 06/01/23 06/30/23 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
1 24 07/14/23 2301130 07/01/23 07/08/23 5 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2 23 07/31/23 2301140 07/09/23 07/15/23 5 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
3 22 08/15/23 2301150 07/16/23 07/29/23 10 10 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
4 21 08/31/23 2301160 07/30/23 08/19/23 15 15 13 13 9 7 8 8
5 20 09/15/23 2301170 08/20/23 09/02/23 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
6 19 09/29/23 2301180 09/03/23 09/16/23 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
7 18 10/13/23 2301190 09/17/23 09/30/23 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
8 17 10/31/23 2301200 10/01/23 10/21/2023 15 15 15 15 14 14 14 14
9 16 11/15/23 2301210 10/22/23 11/04/23 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
10 15 11/30/23 2301220 11/05/23 11/18/23 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
11 14 12/15/23 2301230 11/19/23 12/02/23 10 6 6 6 6 6 6 6
12 13 12/29/23 2301240 12/03/23 12/16/23 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
13 12 01/12/24 2401010 12/17/23 12/31/23 10 4 4 4 4 4 3 3
14 11 01/31/24 2401020 01/01/24 01/20/24 15 12 12 12 11 11 11 11
15 10 02/15/24 2401030 01/21/24 02/03/24 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
16 9 02/29/24 2401040 02/04/24 02/17/24 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
17 8 03/15/24 2401050 02/18/24 03/02/24 10 9 9 9 9 9 9 9
18 7 03/28/23 2401060 03/03/24 03/16/24 10 5 5 5 4 4 4 4
19 6 04/15/24 2401070 03/17/24 04/06/24 15 15 14 14 14 14 14 14
20 5 04/30/24 2401080 04/07/24 04/20/24 10 9 10 9 9 9 9 9
21 4 05/15/24 2401090 04/21/24 05/04/24 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10
22 3 05/31/24 2401100 05/05/24 05/18/24 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10

05/31/24 10 month (3) INST Summer Checks / 10 month FYCA (2) INST Summer checks
23 2 06/14/24 2401110 05/19/24 05/25/24 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
24 1 06/28/24 2401120 05/26/24 06/30/24 25 11 4 4 3 3 2 2

06/28/24 11  month (2) INST Summer Checks
260 216 197 196 188 186 185 185

Page 181 of 248

DRAFT



CLAY COUNTY DISTRICT SCHOOLS
2023 - 2024 PAYROLL CALENDAR

SUMMER 2023

PAY DATE Pay Period BEGIN DATE END DATE DUE DATE

Summer 07/07/23 2301133 05/31/23 06/30/23 06/28/23

Summer 07/31/23 2301143 07/01/23 07/15/23 07/18/23

Summer 08/15/23 2301153 07/16/23 07/31/23 08/01/23

Page 182 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C13 - DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT FEBRUARY, 2023

Description
The items listed have been surveyed by the Coordinator of Property Control, at the request of the Cost Center Property Manager,
and the recommended disposition is noted. These items are either obsolete, unusable or beyond economical repair. These items
should be removed from active inventory and disposed of in the manner indicated. Deletions are for property items received in
the month of January, 2023.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Property Records followed State mandate on trackable assets, Chapter 274.05

Expected Outcomes
Tangible Personal Property shall be controlled and supervised from acquisition through transfer or disposal. Disposal of property
shall be in accordance with Section 274.05, Florida Statutes. All deletions of items with a value of $1,000.00 or more will be
approved by The School Board of Clay County prior to disposition - School Board Policy Section 5.03C.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2: Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
Approve Deletion of Certain Items Report - February, 2023 as submitted

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko,
Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs
(904)-336-6721
susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Provides additional storage space and eliminates the need to account for unusable property. Reduces the dollar value of Tangible
Personal Property.

Review Comments

Attachments

DELETION OF CERTAIN ITEMS REPORT FEBRUARY, 2023.pdf

Page 183 of 248

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/deletion-of-certain-items-report-february-2023.pdf


Page 184 of 248

DRAFT



Page 185 of 248

DRAFT



Page 186 of 248

DRAFT



Page 187 of 248

DRAFT



Page 188 of 248

DRAFT



Page 189 of 248

DRAFT



Page 190 of 248

DRAFT



Page 191 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C14 - BID to be Awarded

Description
a. Gym and Stage Floor Maintenance and Refinishing - County Wide Bid #23-SCH-94:  Contract period is for one (1) year from
March 15, 2023 through March 14, 2024 with the option to renew for three (3) additional one-year contract periods upon mutual
agreement, in writing. Bid established for the purchase of qualified labor and materials to repair, maintain, replace and paint
gymnasium and stage floor(s) as needed throughout the District. The primary vendor awarded is the lowest responsive and
responsible bid. The secondary vendor awarded is the second lowest responsive and responsible bid.

Gap Analysis
The District requires contractors to provide services to ensure our ??facilities and equipment are maintained and functional. The
District requires vendors to provide products to ensure our students and staff receive the items to meet their needs.

Previous Outcomes
No prior bids have been awarded for this type of service. Maintenance and replacement have been done by use of a piggyback
from other school district bids.

Expected Outcomes
Upon approval by the Board, we expect the vendor to provide quality services and products at the terms and conditions listed in
the Bid.

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 2; Strategy 2.4; Ensure effective and efficient use of resources for fiscal stability.

Recommendation
a. Gym and Stage Floor Maintenance and Refinishing - County Wide Bid #23-SCH-94:

Trident Surfacing Inc., 5399 NW 161 Street, Miami, FL, 33014 (Primary)-
Impact Sport Surfaces, 1121 S. Military Trail #318, Deerfield Beach, FL, 33442 (secondary)-

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, Phone: (904)336-6721, Email: susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
a. Gym and Stage Floor Maintenance and Refinishing - County Wide Bid #23-SCH-94:  The total annual spend is estimated as
$250,000.00 from General and Capital Revenue.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 192 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C15 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for Lakeside Junior High School Restroom
Renovations Buildings 1, 2, & 3

Description
Each phase or combination of phases is submitted to the School Board for review and approval.  The plans have received staff
review and are complete to Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) stage.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Individual departments have the opportunity to express needs during plan review in order to design a project that will meet user’s
expectations. 

Expected Outcomes
Schematic, Preliminary and Final Plan review allows for participation from a variety of departments to ensure any program
changes are incorporated into the design.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, and III) Plans and Specifications for the Lakeside Junior High School
Restroom Renovations Buildings 1, 2, & 3.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
As budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan for $1,000,000.00.  The architect’s cost estimate is $750,000.00.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 193 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C16 - Pre-Qualification of Contractors

Description
Section 1013.46 of Florida Statutes requires School Boards to pre-qualify contractors prior to their being able to bid on
construction projects for the district. The rules for pre-qualification are stipulated in the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF). The attached list identifies the contractors to be approved this month. As this is an annual requirement, the
attached list may contain both new contractors and contractors seeking to renew their pre-qualification status. Per Florida
Statutes, only those contractors currently pre-qualified at the time of bidding may bid on a School Board construction project.

Gap Analysis
Contractor Pre-Qualification is an annual requirement.

Previous Outcomes
CCDS complies with contractor pre-qualification as required by Florida Statutes and SREF (State Requirements for Educational
Facilities).

Expected Outcomes
CCDS will remain in compliance by certifying the contractors recommended for pre-qualification meet the requirements of
Section 1013.46 FS, the State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) and School Board Policy.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approve the attached Contractor Pre-qualification list.

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

Table for Board Backup Contractor Prequal, 3.2.23.pdf

Page 194 of 248

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/table-for-board-backup-contractor-prequal-3223.pdf


SBCC PRE-QUALIFIED CONTRACTORS 
 
 
The following contractors are being submitted to the School Board for Contractor Pre-Qualification approval 
having met all requirements of Chapter 1013.46 F. S., as determined by the Pre-Qualification Committee 
consisting of Dr. Michael Kemp, Clayton Anderson, Bertie Staefe, Chris Deely-Isais and Beth Clark.  The pre-
qualification certification is valid for one year from the end of the month in which Board approval is obtained. 

 
 

COMPANY TRADE CATEGORY BOND LIMIT EXPIRATION DATE 

Foresight Construction Group, Inc. General Contractor $15,000,000.00 March 31, 2024 

Gateway Contracting, Inc. General, Mechanical and 
Plumbing Contractor 

$15,000,000.00 March 31, 2024 

Gary S. Bailey, Inc. Building Contractor $2,000,000.00 March 31, 2024 

Life Safety Designs, Inc. Alarm System Contractor $10,000,000.00 March 31, 2024 

Security Fire & Electronics, Inc. Alarm System and Electrical 
Contractor 

$750,000.00 March 31, 2024 

STG Contracting Group, Inc. General Contractor $70,000,000.00 March 31, 2024 

The Rose Group, LLC General Contractor $250,000.00 March 31, 2024 

Thorne Metal Systems, Inc. Roofing Contractor $2,000,000.00 March 31, 2024 

 

Page 195 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C17 - Change Order #2 (Direct Purchasing) for Spring Park Elementary School

Description
Direct purchasing change orders are almost always deductive and are the sole initiative of the owner. These change orders
represent the purchase of materials and/or equipment directly by the School Board in order to save the sales tax. The direct
purchases are deducted from the original contract in the form of a change order.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Sales tax savings have been used in the past to fund capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Expected Outcomes
Money saved with sales tax savings will be used for capital projects that may otherwise have not been funded.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #2.

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director of Facilities Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This deduction to the construction contract in the amount of $1,004,226.12 will not impact the budget. A total tax savings in the
amount of $57,052.42 is realized as a result of this direct purchasing change order.

Review Comments

Attachments

Change Order #2 (Direct Purchasing) for Spring Park Elementary School.pdf

Page 196 of 248

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/change-order-2-direct-purchasing-for-spring-park-elementary-school_1.pdf


Page 197 of 248

DRAFT



Page 198 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C18 - Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Montclair Elementary School Electrical Panel
Replacement

Description
Each phase or a combination of phases is submitted to the School Board for review and approval. The plans have received staff
review and are complete to Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) stage.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
Individual departments have the opportunity to express needs during plan review in order to design a project that will meet user’s
expectations.

Expected Outcomes
Schematic, Preliminary and Final Plan review allows for participation from a variety of departments to ensure any program
changes are incorporated into the design.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approve Schematic/Preliminary/Final (Phase I, II, & III) Plans and Specifications for Montclair Elementary School Electrical
Panel Replacement.

Contact
Dr. Michael Kemp, Director for Facility Planning and Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
As budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan for $500,000.00. The engineer's cost estimate is $500,000.00.

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 199 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C19 - Annual Florida Inventory of School Houses (FISH) Certification

Description
In accordance with Florida Statutes 1013.31 and State Requirements for Educational Facilities (SREF) Section 6.1, annually,
prior to April 1st, each school district must review the Florida Inventory of School Houses (FISH) and certify that it is current
and accurate to the Office of Educational Facilities.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
The School Board approved prior years’ certifications.

Expected Outcomes
It is expected the School Board will approve the certification of the 2023 FISH data.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient and effective learning environment for Clay County students.

Recommendation
Approval of the certification of the 2023 FISH data.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Lance Addison, Coordinator of Planning & Intergovernmental Affairs, (904) 336-6852, lance.addison@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

FISH Certification 2023 (2).pdf

Page 200 of 248

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/fish-certification-2023-2.pdf


Page 201 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C20 - Substantial and Final Completion of Orange Park High School Front Entrance Security Enhancements

Description
Establish a Substantial and Final Completion date for audit purposes and as required by the State Requirements for Educational
Facilities (SREF) and Florida Statutes.  The project, as determined by the Project Manager and Project Architect, has reached
Substantial Completion on November 24, 2022 and Final Completion on January 10, 2023 in accordance with the project
documents.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve Substantial and Final Completion.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None.

Review Comments

Attachments

OPH Front Entrance Security Substantial & Final Completion.pdf

Page 202 of 248

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/oph-front-entrance-security-substantial-final-completion.pdf


Page 203 of 248

DRAFT



Page 204 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C21 - Middleburg High School Safety & Security Single Key Access Initiative Contract Award

Description
This project is listed in the Educational Facilities Plan (EFP). The selection was conducted in accordance with Florida Statute
287.055.  The project was advertised for three (3) consecutive weeks with The Clay Today.  The bid opening was held February
7, 2023 at 2:00 p.m.  The project had two (2) bidders which met the bid requirements. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Completion of Middleburg High School Safety & Security Single Key Access Initiative

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Award the construction contract to the low bidder meeting specifications, Gary S. Bailey, Inc., the base bid in the amount of
$514,840.00.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

MHS Single Key Access Bid Tab.pdf

MHS Safety & Security Single Key Access Contract.pdf

Page 205 of 248

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/mhs-single-key-access-bid-tab.pdf
http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/mhs-safety-security-single-key-access-contract.pdf


Page 206 of 248

DRAFT



Page 207 of 248

DRAFT



Page 208 of 248

DRAFT



Page 209 of 248

DRAFT



Page 210 of 248

DRAFT



Page 211 of 248

DRAFT



Page 212 of 248

DRAFT



Page 213 of 248

DRAFT



Page 214 of 248

DRAFT



Page 215 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C22 - Change Order #5 for Orange Park High School Front Entrance Security Enhancement

Description
Change Orders are initiated by the Contractor, Architect/Engineer or Owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the
project as defined by the plans and specifications. Change Orders are reviewed by the Architect/Engineer and staff prior to
submission to the School Board for approval. This change order is for an additional seventeen (17) days due to delay in materials
needed for completion of punch list items identified during Substantial Completion inspection.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #5.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This change order will not increase the contract amount.  Architect fees, contracted at 8.82%, will not increase as a result of this
change order.

Review Comments

Attachments

OPH Front Entrance Security CO #5.pdf

Page 216 of 248

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/oph-front-entrance-security-co-5.pdf


Page 217 of 248

DRAFT



Page 218 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C23 - Keystone Heights High School Safety & Security Single Key Access Initiative  Contract Award

Description
This project is listed in the Educational Facilities Plan (EFP). The selection was conducted in accordance with Florida Statute
287.055.  The project was advertised for three (3) consecutive weeks with The Clay Today.  The bid opening was held February
7, 2023 at 1:00 p.m.  The project had two (2) bidders which met the bid requirements. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Completion of Keystone Heights High School Safety & Security Single Key Access Initiative

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Award the construction contract to the low bidder meeting specifications, Gary S. Bailey, Inc., the base bid in the amount of
$393,952.00.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

KHH Single Key Access Contract Award.pdf

Page 219 of 248

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/khh-single-key-access-contract-award.pdf


Page 220 of 248

DRAFT



Page 221 of 248

DRAFT



Page 222 of 248

DRAFT



Page 223 of 248

DRAFT



Page 224 of 248

DRAFT



Page 225 of 248

DRAFT



Page 226 of 248

DRAFT



Page 227 of 248

DRAFT



Page 228 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C24 - Orange Park Junior High School Restroom Renovations (Building 1) Contract Award

Description
This project is listed in the Educational Facilities Plan (EFP). The selection was conducted in accordance with Florida Statute
287.055.  The project was advertised for three (3) consecutive weeks with The Clay Today.  The bid opening was held February
7, 2023 at 11:00 a.m.  The project had three (3) bidders which met the bid requirements. 

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Completion of Orange Park Junior High School Restroom Renovations (Building 1).

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Award the construction contract to the low bidder meeting specifications, Thomas May Construction Company, the base bid in
the amount of $385,997.00.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

OPJ Restroom Renovation Contract.pdf

Page 229 of 248

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/opj-restroom-renovation-contract.pdf


Page 230 of 248

DRAFT



Page 231 of 248

DRAFT



Page 232 of 248

DRAFT



Page 233 of 248

DRAFT



Page 234 of 248

DRAFT



Page 235 of 248

DRAFT



Page 236 of 248

DRAFT



Page 237 of 248

DRAFT



Page 238 of 248

DRAFT



Page 239 of 248

DRAFT



Page 240 of 248

DRAFT



Page 241 of 248

DRAFT



Page 242 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
C25 - Change Order #2 for Clay High School Restroom Renovations

Description
Change Orders are initiated by the Contractor, Architect/Engineer or Owner, and may increase or decrease the scope of the
project as defined by the plans and specifications. Change Orders are reviewed by the Architect/Engineer and staff prior to
submission to the School Board for approval. This change order is for materials and labor to install exhaust fans, necessary duct
work, electrical connections for fans, and additional ceilings and light fixtures.  Provide and install new roof curbs for exhaust
fan ventilation due to unforeseen and changed site conditions.

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
Construction will proceed immediately translating to an on time completion.

Strategic Plan Goal
Ensure effective management of the organization, operations, and facilities to maximize the use of resources and promote a safe,
efficient, and effective learning environment for Clay County students. 

Recommendation
Approve Change Order #2.

Contact
Bryce Ellis, Assistant Superintendent for Operations, (904) 336-6853, bryce.ellis@myoneclay.net,
Michael Kemp, Director of Facility Planning & Construction, (904) 336-6824, michael.kemp@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
This change order will increase the contract amount by $162,829.00.  Architect fees, contracted at 8.34%, will increase by
$13,579.94 as a result of this change order.  These funds are available and budgeted in the Educational Facilities Work Plan.

Review Comments

Attachments

CHS Restroom Renovation CO #2.pdf

Page 243 of 248

DRAFT

http://agenda.oneclay.net/content/files/chs-restroom-renovation-co-2.pdf


Page 244 of 248

DRAFT



Page 245 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D1 - Human Resources Special Action A

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Special Action A - 3.2.2023 (Confidential).pdf (Confidential)

Page 246 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D2 - Human Resources Special Action B

Description
Florida Statutes (F.S. 1012.22(1)(9f), State Board Rules and Clay County School Board Policies require Board notification
and/or action regarding decisions and recommendations of the Superintendent related to Personnel matters.  

Gap Analysis
N/A

Previous Outcomes
N/A

Expected Outcomes
N/A

Strategic Plan Goal
Goal 5:  Develop and support great educators, support personnel, and leaders.

Recommendation
Approve the action as presented.

Contact
Brenda G. Troutman, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources  (904) 336 6701   Brenda.Troutman@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
None

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 247 of 248

DRAFT



School Board of Clay County

March 2, 2023 - Regular School Board Meeting

Title
D3 - Proposed Allocations for 2023-2024

Description
Staff allocation documents clarify how each school, district, department, and division is staffed for the 2023-24 school year. The
School Board is required to take action on all staff allocation changes. 

Gap Analysis
These allocations are required to ensure the adequate staffing of the district and schools.

Previous Outcomes
The district and schools are adequately staffed.

Expected Outcomes
Staffing will be sufficient to meet the needs of the various schools and district departments.

Strategic Plan Goal
The district ensures fiscal responsibility and equitable distribution of resources.

Recommendation
Approve the staff allocation plan as submitted.

Contact
Dr. Susan Legutko, Assistant Superintendent for Business Affairs, (904) 336-6722, susan.legutko@myoneclay.net

Financial Impact
Reflected on Attachment

Review Comments

Attachments

Page 248 of 248

DRAFT


